
THIRD REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT 

CORPORATION 
 

Tuesday, August 21, 2018 - 9:30 a.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 24351 El Toro Road 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 

 

1. Call meeting to order / Establish Quorum 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Frankel 
 

3. Acknowledge Media 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Approval of Minutes 
a. July 17, 2018 – Regular Open Session 

b. July 26, 2018 – Special Open Meeting 
 

6. Report of the Chair 
 Employee Recognition 
 
7. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) - At this time Members may address 

the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction 
of this Board of Directors. There is a maximum time limit of three minutes per 
speaker and a speaker may only address the Board once during this period.  The 
Board reserves the right to limit the total amount of time allotted for the Open 
Forum. 

 

8. Responses to Open Forum Speakers 
 

9. Update from VMS – Director Sheinwold 
 

10. CEO Report 
  

11. Consent Calendar - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are 
recommended for action by committees and will be enacted by the Board by one 
motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by 



 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board Agenda 
August 21, 2018 
Page 2 of 4 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

members of the Board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and 
action by the Board. 

 

a. Landscape Committee Recommendations: 
 

 (1)  Tree Removal:  
 Approve the request to remove one diseased Evergreen 

Pear tree located at 4007-2G Calle Sonora and; 
 Deny the request to remove one Weeping Fig tree located at 

3138-C Via Vista and in an effort to preserve the tree and 
protect private property, direct staff to root prune and install 
18” deep root barriers around the perimeter of the patio 
within 60 days, and; 

 Approve the off-schedule trimming and crown reduction of 
one Indian Laurel Fig tree that has become too large for the 
location and is adversely affecting the surrounding manors 
at 3166-B Alta Vista and; 

 Approve the removal of one Carrotwood tree due to the 
presence of wood decay and the visible damage to the 
adjacent concrete sidewalk and driveway; located at 5567-A 
Via Portora. 
 

b. Finance Committee Recommendations:  
 

 (1) Approve Resolution to Record Lien against Member’s ID; 934-902-59 
 

 (2) Approve Resolution to Record Lien against Member’s ID; 932-310-38 
 

12. Unfinished Business  
 

a. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Payment Plan Agreement Form (JULY initial 
notification, 30-day notification to conform to Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied)  
 

b. Entertain a Motion to Approve the Revised Village Energy Task Force 
Charter 
 

c. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution to Revise the Financial 
Guidelines/Guarantors for Manor Unit (JULY initial notification, 30-day 
notification to conform to Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 

13. New Business 
 

a. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution to Revise Common Area Use 
Policy (AUGUST initial notification-must postpone 30-days for Member comments and 
suggestions to conform to Civil Code §4360) 

b. Entertain a Motion to Revise the Traffic Rules & Regulations, Section 7.6  
 



 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board Agenda 
August 21, 2018 
Page 3 of 4 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

c. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution to Revise the Non-Emergency 
Chargeable Maintenance Services Policy (AUGUST initial notification-must 
postpone 30-days for Member comments and suggestions to conform to Civil Code
§4360) 
 

d. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution to Approve 2019 Collection and Lien
Enforcement Policy 
 

e. Entertain a Motion to Approve the Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
 

14. Committee Reports 
 

a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report - Director Parsons - Next 
Meeting September 4, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room  
 

b. Report of the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee - Director 
Walsh - Next Meeting Monday, August 27, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. in the 
Sycamore Room 
 

c. Report of the Maintenance and Construction Committee - Director Walsh -
Next Meeting October 1, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room 
 

  Report of the Parking and Golf Cart Task Force - Director Frankel 
 

d. Report of the Landscape Committee - Director Tung - Next Meeting 
September 6, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room 
 

e. Report of the Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings - Director Zalon - Next 
Hearing September 19, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room and 1 p.m. in 
the Pine Room  
 

f. Report of the Communications Committee - Director Baum - Next Meeting 
September 12, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

g. Report of the Village Energy Task Force - Director Walsh - Next Meeting 
September 12, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. in the Willow Room  
 

h. Report of the Water Subcommittee - Director Tung - Next Meeting October 9, 
2018 at 11:00 a.m. in the Sycamore Room 
 

i. Report of the Resident Policy and Compliance Task Force - Director Baum -
Next Meeting TBD 
 

15. GRF Committee Hightlights 
 

a. Community Activities Committee - Next Meeting September 13, 2018, at 1:30
p.m. in the Board Room 



 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board Agenda 
August 21, 2018 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

b. Finance Committee – Director Parsons. Next Meeting August 22, 2018, at 
1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

c. Maintenance & Construction Committee - Next Meeting October 10, 2018 at 
9:30 a.m. in the Board Room 
 

 PAC Ad Hoc Committee – Next Meeting TBA 
 

d. Media and Communications Committee - Next Meeting September 17, 2018 
at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

 Thrive Project Task Force – Next Meeting September 19, 2018 at 9:30 
a.m. in the Cypress Room 

 

e. Mobility and Vehicles Committee-Director Frankel – Special Meeting August 
31, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room.  Next regular meeting October 3, 
2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

f. Security and Community Access Committee – Director Bruninghaus. Next 
Meeting August 23, 2018, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room 
 

 Disaster Preparedness Task Force—Next meeting September 25, 
2018, 9:30 a.m. in the Cypress Room 
 

16. Future Agenda Items-- All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are 
Resolutions on 30-day public review or items for a future Board Meetings.  No 
action will be taken by the Board on these agenda items at this meeting.  The Board 
will take action on these items at a future Board Meeting.     

  
a. Resolution to Update Third Mutual Bylaw Section 6.4.5 Automatic Vacancy 

 

17.    Director's Comments 
 

18. Recess - At this time the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive 
Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.   

 
Closed Executive Session Agenda  
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 

(a) July 17, 2018 – Regular Executive Session 
Write-off Assessment & Chargeable Services Balances 
Discuss and Consider Member Matters 
Discuss Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters 
 

19. Adjourn 



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 16 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 17 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 18 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 19 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 20 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 21 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 22 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 23 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 24 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 25 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 26 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 27 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 28 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 29 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 30 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 31 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 32 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 33 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 34 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 35 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 36 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 37 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 38 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 39 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 40 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 41 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 42 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 43 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 44 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 45 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 46 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 47 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 48 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 49 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 50 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 51 of 52



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 52 of 52



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 1 of 7



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 2 of 7



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 3 of 7



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 4 of 7



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 5 of 7



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 6 of 7



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 7 of 7



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 
Tree Removal Approval (2) Tree Removal Denial (1) and Approval of 

Off-schedule trimming/crown reduction (1) 
 
WHEREAS, September 20, 2011, that the Board of Directors adopted 
Resolution 03-11-149 tree removal guidelines: 
 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed 
merely because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal 
preferences concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 
 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction if the 

obstruction is at a considerable distance from the complaining 
manor and therefore causes only a partial obstruction. 

 
 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will 

contribute to the destabilization of that slope. 
 

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a 
hazard, in failing health or interfering with neighboring trees, will 
be considered for removal. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 2, 2018, the Landscape Committee 
recommended to: 
 

 Approve the request to remove one diseased Evergreen Pear tree 
located at 4007-2G Calle Sonora and; 

 Deny the request to remove one Weeping Fig tree located at 
3138-C Via Vista and in an effort to preserve the tree and protect 
private property, direct staff to root prune and install 18” deep root 
barriers around the perimeter of the patio within 60 days, and; 

 Approve the off-schedule trimming and crown reduction of one 
Indian Laurel Fig tree that has become too large for the location 
and is adversely affecting the surrounding manors at 3166-B Alta 
Vista and; 

 Approve the removal of one Carrotwood tree due to the presence 
of wood decay and the visible damage to the adjacent concrete 
sidewalk and driveway; located at 5567-A Via Portora. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, the Board of 
Directors approved the request to remove one tree at 4007-2G and one 
tree located at 5567-A; denied the request to remove one tree located at 
3138-C; and approved the off-schedule trimming of one tree located at 
3166-B. 

 

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 1 of 2



RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this 
resolution.  

 

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 
 

Recording of a Lien 
 
WHEREAS, Member ID 934-902-59; is currently delinquent to Third 
Laguna Hills Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon 
adoption of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board 
(with no delegation of such action by the Board), acting in an open 
meeting, and for which the Board's vote is recorded in the minutes;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, that the Board 
of Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 934-
902-59 and; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

 

 

RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 
 

Recording of a Lien 
 
WHEREAS, Member ID 932-310-38; is currently delinquent to Third 
Laguna Hills Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon 
adoption of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board 
(with no delegation of such action by the Board), acting in an open 
meeting, and for which the Board's vote is recorded in the minutes;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, that the Board 
of Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 932-
310-38 and; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Delinquent Assessment – Payment Plan Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff and the Finance Committee recommend the Board approve revisions to the Delinquent 
Assessment - Payment Plan Agreement form, initiating a monthly charge for interest at the rate 
of 10% per annum, and introducing an administrative fee of $25 per month. 

BACKGROUND 

As indicated in the Third Mutual Collection and Lien Enforcement Policy, any Member who is 
unable to timely pay regular assessments is entitled to make a written request for a payment 
plan to the Board. The Board considers payment plan requests on a case-by-case basis, and 
is under no obligation to grant requests.   

A Delinquent Assessment – Payment Plan form is used to create an agreement between the 
delinquent Member and the Mutual.  The form includes several payment options and 
conditions for repayment.  Once completed by the Member, the form is submitted for review by 
the Finance Committee with a Staff recommendation for approval, denial, or modification.   

The Finance Committee requested legal review of this form to provide stronger collection 
language if terms of the agreement are breached and to recover costs associated with 
accepting payments over time. 

DISCUSSION 

On July 3, 2018 the Third Finance Committee reviewed the existing Payment Plan Agreement 
Form including changes submitted by legal counsel, with stronger collection language added to 
help reinforce collection activity that will occur if a member breaches the agreed-to payment 
plan for delinquent assessments.  The form also incorporates a new interest rate of 10% per 
annum and a new administrative fee of $25 for every month the agreement is in effect. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The stronger terms of the payment plan agreement are likely to result in additional compliance 
and repayment of delinquent assessments. 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 1 of 4



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Delinquent Assessment – Payment Plan Agreement 
July 17, 2018 
Page 2 

Prepared By: Betty Parker, Chief Financial Officer 

Reviewed By: Steve Hormuth, Controller 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT1 – Delinquent Assessment – Payment Plan Agreement 
ATT2 – Resolution 

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 2 of 4



 
DELINQUENT ASSESSMENT – PAYMENT PLAN AGREEMENT 

 
Manor Number:__________  Assessment Delinquency:_____________ 

 
Member Name:  _________________________  Member SS#:_______________  DL#_______________ 

 
The undersigned hereby acknowledges the assessment delinquency shown above.  He or she acknowledges the rights of Third 
Laguna Hills Mutual (the Mutual) to collect such assessments, together with accrued late charges, interest and collection costs, in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California and the governing documents of the Mutual.  The following reflects the 
standards that have been adopted by the Board of Directors.  Refer to the Payment Plan Standards For Delinquent Assessment 
Payments document for more details.  The undersigned agrees to repay the delinquency debt according to the following plan,  
 

Check One: 

 INSTALLMENTS: The delinquent balance will be paid off in its entirety within ______ months.  To achieve this, extra 
monthly payments will be made in the amount of $__________.  These payments will be in addition to the regular 

monthly assessment.  Extra payments will commence on ______ and be made on or before the first of each successive 
month until the delinquency and accrued late charges are paid in full.  With this standard payment option, the 
undersigned is also required to submit a completed financial statement form (enclosed) as well as a copy of pages one 
and two of the two most recent federal tax returns. 

 LUMP SUM: Payment in full of the delinquent amount will be made in a lump sum on or before _________.  This 

payment will be in addition to the regular monthly assessment. 

 ESCROW: The undersigned states that the manor is presently for sale, and will present a copy of the executed listing 
agreement in conjunction with this agreement.  If the listing agreement expires before the manor is sold, a new 
executed listing agreement must be presented.  The total term of the payment plan under this option cannot exceed 90 
days.  Payment in full of the delinquent amount will be made from the proceeds of sale of the manor, through escrow.  
Further, undersigned understands and agrees that accrued fees, charges and legal collection costs will be collected 
through escrow.  This option allows a request for review by the Board of Directors for an extension. 

 OTHER: Member's payment plan proposal that is in accordance with the standards for payment plans adopted by the 
Mutual:_______________________________________________. This will be in addition to the regular monthly 

assessment 
 

Initial All: 

 The undersigned understands that interest will accrue at the rate of 10% per annum, in accordance with the Collection 
and Lien Enforcement Policy of the Mutual, until the delinquency is paid in full.  In addition, the undersigned shall pay 
an administrative fee of $25.00 for every month this agreement is in effect.  If this agreement is breached and the Board 
of Directors for the Mutual allows re-instatement, Owner will be responsible for payment of all attorneys' fees, costs, 
interest, late fees and assessments incurred as a result of said breach before this agreement will be deemed "paid in 
full." 

 The undersigned understands that the Mutual will pursue all available legal means to collect the sums due on the manor 
including the recording of a lien for an additional cost of a minimum of $625 if the terms of this agreement are 
breached.  If any one payment is not received by the deadline stated, the Mutual shall, without any further notice to 
undersigned, have the power and authority to pursue any and all collection remedies against undersigned and/or 
undersigned's property, including but not limited to non-judicial foreclosure, judicial foreclosure, any remedies 
available, and a lawsuit for purposes of securing a money judgment.  Undersigned waives any and all claims against 
the Mutual and its agents and attorneys, and undersigned waives any and all defenses available related to or arising out 
of this mater, the amounts owed under this agreement, and any other obligation stated herein. 

 The undersigned understands that he or she has the right to meet with the Board of Directors of the Mutual to discuss a 
reasonable alternative payment plan option (see the fourth option above), according to the payment plan standards 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Mutual. 

 
Member Name: _________________________ Signature: _________________________   Date:_____________ 

  
Mutual Officer Signature: _________________________   Date:_____________ 

 
Return signed form by mail to:    Or deliver in person to: 
Assessment Payment Representative    Assessment Payment Representative 
PO Box 2220      24351 El Toro Road 
Laguna Woods, CA  92654-2220    Laguna Woods, CA 92637 
       Phone: (949) 597-4221  Fax: (949) 472-4154 Agenda Item # 12a 

Page 3 of 4



this page intentionally left blank



Resolution 03-18-XX 
Delinquent Assessment Payment Plan Agreement 

WHEREAS, any Member who is unable to timely pay regular assessments is entitled to 
make a written request for a payment plan to the Board; 

WHEREAS, each request for a payment plan is approved or denied on a case-by-case 
basis after review by the Finance Committee; 

WHEREAS, a Delinquent Assessment – Payment Plan form, which includes several 
payment options and conditions, is used to create an agreement between the 
delinquent Member and the Mutual; 

WHEREAS, the Third Finance Committee recommends a revised Payment Plan 
Agreement Form with changes submitted by legal counsel to help reinforce collection 
activity that will occur if a member breaches the agreed-to payment plan for delinquent 
assessments; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends recovering costs associated with 
accepting payments over time including the initiation of interest charges and an 
administrative fee for every month the agreement is in effect; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on August 21, 2018, the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts revisions to the Delinquent Assessment - Payment 
Plan Agreement form, as attached to this Corporate record, initiating a monthly charge 
for interest at the rate of 10% per annum, and introducing a new payment plan 
administrative fee of $25 per month; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

July Initial Notification 
30-day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied.  

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 4 of 4



this page intentionally left blank



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Revisions to Village Energy Taskforce Charter 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the proposed revisions to the Village Energy Task Force Charter (Attachment 1). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
All three Corporations have recently entered into an Energy Consultant contract with The 
Energy Coalition in order to pursue an overall energy strategy for the community in light of 
rising energy costs, increased energy consumption, and rapidly changing technology, and a 
desire to obtain professional guidance to develop programs and projects to implement this 
strategy.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Representatives from the three corporations met on July 5, 2018 and created a charter and 
mission statement for a joint energy taskforce, where energy efficiency measures could be 
developed.  
 
At the August 1, 2018 Village Energy Task Force (VETF) meeting, certain wording changes 
proposed by the legal counsel for United Mutual were discussed.   
 
By consensus, VETF voted to recommend the Board review and approve the proposed 
changes to the Charter so that each Corporation approved the same language.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
None. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Laurie Chavarria, Executive Assistant 
 
 
Reviewed By:  Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance and Construction Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Charter 

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 1 of 2



this page intentionally left blank



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Revisions to Village Energy Task Force Charter 
August 21, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 

Attachment 1 – Proposed Charter 
 

  
 

Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 2 of 2



this page intentionally left blank



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Guidelines for Financial Qualifications 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Entertain a motion to approve the proposed Guidelines for Financial Qualifications. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual, acting through its Board of Directors, previously adopted operating 
rules concerning financial qualifications pursuant to the following Board resolutions: 
 
1. Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualification (Res. No. 03-05-17); 
2. Financial Guarantor (Res. No. M3-91-38); and 
3. Financial Qualifications Policy (Res. No. 03-16-95). 
 
The forgoing operating rules are collectively referred to as the Financial Resolutions. 
 
DISCUSSION 
The proposed Guidelines for Financial Qualifications are consistent with the Financial 
Resolutions except with regard to Guarantor arrangements.  The proposed Guidelines are 
prepared in this manner because the financial qualifications and Guarantor provisions are 
interdependent and the intent is for these provisions to be stated in one document for ease of 
reference. 
 
Section IV of the proposed Guidelines for Financial Qualifications contains the aforementioned 
Guarantor arrangements, including specific requirements and the conditions under which the 
Board may withhold its approval of any Guarantor.   
 
It is in the Mutual’s best interests to protect and preserve its financial integrity, ensure 
consistency among the provisions of its governing documents, including without limitation, the 
Financial Resolutions, and promote the uniform application of the provisions of said governing 
documents. 
 
On July 17, 2018, the Board reviewed the proposed resolution and requested that the order of 
Subsections 1 and 2 in Section B (Guarantee Payment) of Exhibit “A” to the Resolution be 
reversed and a section for a notary be added to Exhibit “A” to the Resolution.  By consensus, 
the Board introduced the resolution for 30-day review.   
 
Subsequently, legal counsel corrected a Scrivener's error in Section V of the Resolution. 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 1 of 22



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Guidelines for Financial Guidelines 
August 21, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Attachment 1 to this report is the redlined version of Resolution 03-18-XX Guidelines for 
Financial Qualifications as introduced at the July 17, 2018 Board Meeting and corrected for the 
aforementioned Scrivener's error.  Attachment 2 contains the final version of the resolution.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Siobhan Foster, COO 
 
Reviewed By:  Brad Hudson, CEO 
   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
ATT-1: Redlined Resolution 03-18-XX Guidelines for Financial Qualifications Introduced at July 
17, 2018 Board Meeting 
ATT-2: Resolution 03-18-XX Guidelines for Financial Qualifications 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 2 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 1 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 
Guidelines For Financial Qualifications 

 
WHEREAS, Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”), acting through its Board of Directors (“Board”), 
previously adopted operating rules concerning financial qualifications pursuant to the following Board 
resolutions: 
 

1. Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualification (Res. No. 03-05-17); 
2. Financial Guarantor (Res. No. M3-91-38); and 
3. Financial Qualifications Policy (Res. No. 03-16-95). 

 
WHEREAS, the forgoing operating rules are collectively referred to herein as the “Financial 
Resolutions”. 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Mutual’s best interests to protect and preserve its financial integrity, ensure 
consistency among the provisions of its governing documents (including without limitation, the Financial 
Resolutions), and promote the uniform application of the provisions of said governing documents. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on August 21, 2018, that the Board hereby adopts, and the 
Financial Resolutions are hereby superseded by, the Guidelines for Financial Qualifications set forth 
below. 
 

GUIDELINES FOR FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS 
 

The governing documents of Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) require each person seeking to acquire 
an ownership interest in a unit (“Applicant”) to obtain the prior written approval of the Mutual’s Board of 
Directors (“Board”) before doing so. As a condition to obtaining such approval, each Applicant must 
provide to the Board documentation that conclusively establishes that Applicant satisfies certain financial 
requirements as set forth in the Mutual’s governing documents (“Application”). For the purposes of 
determining whether an Application will be approved or denied, the Board has adopted these Guidelines 
for Financial Qualifications (“Guidelines”), which shall remain in effect until such time as these Guidelines 
may be changed, modified, or amended by a duly adopted Board resolution.  
 
I. General Application Requirements. 

 
a. As a condition of approval, each Applicant must submit to the Mutual an Application with 

all of the following documentation provided in a form satisfactory to the Board: 
 
1. A federal income tax return for the most recent year that is signed, dated, and 

includes Schedules A, B and E, as applicable, as well as any other financial 
verification documents requested by the Board. By way of example, but without 
limitation, other verification documents may be required if any Applicant derives 
income from a business owned by the Applicant (personally or through a legal 
entity), in which case the applicable business tax schedule and profit and loss 
statement may also be required.  

Deleted: July 17

Deleted: introduces

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 3 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 2 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

 
2. Net worth verification pursuant to Section II of these Guidelines. 

 
3. Income verification pursuant to Section III of these Guidelines. 

 
4. A completed Financial Statement and Credit Information form. 

 
5. Verification of the Applicant’s identity, which must be a natural person, or a 

designated individual acting on behalf of a corporation, LLC or Trust.  
 

6. If the Applicant desires to have a Guarantor to enable the Applicant to Qualify to 
purchase a unit (as defined below), all documents required pursuant to Section IV 
of these Guidelines shall also apply to the Guarantor. 
 

7. If the Applicant desires to purchase more than one (1) unit or already owns at least 
one (1) unit at the Mutual, all documents required pursuant to Section IV of these 
Guidelines shall be required for each unit application. 

 
b. The Board may deny any Application that does not include all of the documentation 

required herein, in a form consistent with these Guidelines and satisfactory to the Board, 
except as otherwise required by law.  
 

c. Any Application (including, without limitation, any document submitted in connection with 
said Application) that contains false or misleading information will be denied.  If an 
Application was approved and it is later determined that such Application contained false 
or misleading information and if escrow had not closed by the time such discovery was 
made the Board may immediately withdraw its approval without the Mutual suffering any 
liability whatsoever.  If escrow, as referenced immediately above, has already closed 
when the discovery of the false and misleading documentation is discovered, the 
Applicant will be deemed an owner, not in good standing and will, after a noticed hearing 
before the Board, be denied the owner’s amenity rights applicable, unless suspended, by 
an owner in the Mutual.  
 

d. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if more than one (1) Applicant 
will acquire an ownership interest or reside in any single unit, such Applicants’ income and 
net worth may, in the Board’s sole reasonable discretion, be calculated collectively.  

 
II. Net Worth Requirements. 

 
a. As a condition of approval, each Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of net 

worth that is greater than or equal to the sum of the purchase price of the unit plus one 
hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($125,000) in acceptable assets.  
 

b. When computing net worth for the purposes of this Section, acceptable assets shall be 
limited to those assets that are considered, in the Board’s sole discretion, to be liquid, 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 4 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 3 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

marketable or income producing. Examples of acceptable assets include, without 
limitation, the following:  

 
1. Equity in residential and income real estate. 

 
2. Savings accounts in banks and credit unions. 

 
3. Cash value life insurance. 

 
4. Certificates of deposit and money market accounts. 

 
4. IRA, SEP, 401(k), Profit Sharing and Keogh accounts. 

 
5. Federal, state, or municipal government bonds. 

 
6. U.S. traded investments (e.g., NYSE, Amex, OTC, Nasdaq, etc.) valued at current 

market prices. 
 

7. Mortgages and promissory notes; provided that the interest in such mortgages or 
promissory notes is reported on the Applicant’s tax return. 
 

c. When computing net worth for the purposes of this Section, acceptable assets will not 
include, without limitation, the following: 

 
1. Equity in mobile homes, recreational vehicles, boats, trailers, airplanes, 

automobiles, or other vehicles of any kind. 
 

2. Vacant or undeveloped real estate. 
 

3. Artwork, jewelry, or other collectibles (e.g., coins, dolls, stamps, etc.). 
 

4. Term life insurance. 
 

5. Annuity funds that cannot be withdrawn in lump sum. 
 

6. Anticipated bequests, devises or inheritances. 
 

7. Mortgages and promissory notes where the interest in such mortgages or 
promissory notes is not reported on the Applicant’s tax return. 

 
III. Income Requirements.  

 
a. As a condition of approval, each Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of annual 

income that is greater than or equal to the sum of the total of the unit’s annual mortgage 
payment plus forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) per year.  

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 5 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 4 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

 
b. Traditional retirement account assets (e.g., 401K, ERISA, IRA, Profit Sharing, etc.) will be 

considered as a source of annual income in accordance with this subsection. For the 
purposes of the income verification requirement pursuant to subsection (a) above, the 
portion of an Applicant’s traditional retirement account assets attributable to said 
Applicant’s annual income shall be deemed to be the greater of the following: 
 
1. The mandatory annual distributions for the Applicant’s retirement accounts; or 
 
2. The total amount of the Applicant’s retirement accounts multiplied by eighty 

percent (80%), and then dividing this product by twenty-five (25) years, as follows: 
 

Attributable Income = (Total Retirement Account Assets x 80%) ÷ 25 
 

c. Examples of acceptable income verifications include, without limitation, the following: 
 
1. Federal tax returns from the most recent year. 

 
2. W-2 forms or paycheck stubs. 

 
3. Bank, credit union, or investment account statements. 

 
4. Letters from bankers with verifiable first-hand knowledge of the Applicant’s 

finances. 
 

5. Notices of annuities and social security payments. 
 

6. Credit reports. 
 

d. Examples of unacceptable income verifications include, without limitation, the following: 
 

1. Letters from employers, accountants, enrolled agents, investment counselors, or 
attorneys. 
 

2. Any income not reported on federal income tax returns. 
 

IV. Guarantors. 
 
a. In the event any Applicant is unable to satisfy the financial requirements set forth in the 

Mutual’s governing documents (including, without limitation, these Guidelines), the Board 
may permit said Applicant to have a financial guarantor in accordance with this Section IV 
(“Guarantor”).  
 

b. Each Applicant supported by a Guarantor shall submit proof that their primary residence is 
located in California, USA and satisfactory verification of a net worth of at least one 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 6 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 5 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($125,000) in acceptable assets, notwithstanding 
the requirements of Section II and Section III of these Guidelines. 
 

c. Each Guarantor shall enter into an agreement with the Mutual to become financially 
responsible, jointly and severally, for all expenses associated with the Applicant’s 
ownership, residency and/or membership at the Mutual (“Assessment/Charges Guarantor 
Obligation Form”). A Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and incorporated in its entirety herein by this reference as if fully set forth in 
these Guidelines.  
 

d. Each Guarantor shall submit all of the following documentation in a form satisfactory to 
the Board: 

 
1. A fully executed and completed Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. 

 
2. Proof that the Guarantor’s primary residence is located in California, USA. 

 
3. Verification of net worth equal to the sum of the purchase price of the unit plus two 

hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) in acceptable assets. 
 

4. Verification that the Guarantor’s annual income is greater than or equal to the sum 
of the total of the unit’s annual mortgage payment plus eighty-thousand dollars 
($80,000) per year. 
 

5. A credit report. 
 

e. The Board may withhold its approval of any Guarantor for, without limitation, any the 
following reasons:  
 
1. A Guarantor or Applicant fails to provide all of the documentation as required by 

subsection (d), above, in a form consistent with these Guidelines and satisfactory 
to the Board. 
 

2. A Guarantor is subject to a bankruptcy proceeding that is pending or has not been 
discharged. 
 

3. Any foreclosure or short sale of any property owned by the Guarantor. 
 

4. Any outstanding balances, collection accounts, or judgments owed by the 
Guarantor. 
 

5. A Guarantor’s credit score is lower than 680. 
 

6. A Guarantor resides in a primary residence outside of the State of California. 
 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 7 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 6 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

7. A Guarantor’s bank is located outside of the State of California. 
 

8. A Guarantor already guarantees (1) one or more units within Laguna Woods 
Village.  
 

9. A Guarantor provides any false or misleading information to the Board. 
 

10. Any other reasonable grounds that call into question a Guarantor’s financial ability 
or fitness to serve in this capacity on an Applicant’s behalf.  

 
f. Each Guarantor’s assurances shall only apply to the Applicant(s) and unit expressly 

identified on the Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. No Guarantor’s 
assurances may be transferred to any other Applicant or unit. 
 

V. Multiple Units. As a condition of approval, any Applicant who desires to purchase more than one 
(1) unit or already owns at least one (1) unit at Third Laguna Hills Mutual, Laguna Woods Mutual 
No. Fifty or United Laguna Woods Mutual shall submit satisfactory verification of annual income 
and net worth requirements pursuant to this Section V. 

 
a. Net Worth Requirements. The Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of net worth 

that is greater than or equal to the sum of the purchase price for each unit plus one 
hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($125,000) in acceptable assets per unit, as follows: 

 
 Unit 1: purchase price for Unit 1 + $125,000 

 
 Unit 2:  purchase price for Unit 1 + $125,000 +  
  purchase price for Unit 2 + $125,000 

 
 Unit 3: purchase price for Unit 1 + $125,000 +  
  purchase price for Unit 2 + $125,000 + 
  purchase price for Unit 3 + $125,000  

 
b. Income Requirements. The Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of annual 

income as follows: 
 

1. Annual Income that is greater than or equal to the sum of the following: the total of 
the first unit’s annual mortgage payment plus forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) 
per year plus the total of the second unit’s annual mortgage payment plus forty-five 
thousand dollars ($45,000) per year plus an additional twenty-two thousand five 
hundred dollars ($22,500).  

 
2. For each additional unit, the annual income requirement shall be calculated 

consistent with subsection (b)(1), above – that is, the additional unit’s annual 
mortgage payment plus an additional twenty-two thousand five hundred dollars 
($22,500) over the previous annual income requirement, as follows: 

Deleted: the 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 8 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 7 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

 
Unit 1:  annual mortgage payment + $45,000 

 
 Unit 2:  annual mortgage payment on Unit 1 + $45,000 +  

 annual mortgage payment on Unit 2 + $45,000 + $22,500 
 

 Unit 3: annual mortgage payment on Unit 1 + $45,000 +  
 annual mortgage payment on Unit 2 + $45,000 + $22,500 + 
 annual mortgage payment on Unit 2 + $45,000 + $22,500 + $22,500 

 

July Initial Notification 
30‐Day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied.  
 
  

Deleted: July Initial Notification¶
Should the Board endorse the proposed 
revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be 
made and seconded to accept the resolution 
and allow discussion to ensure that the 
resolution reads to the satisfaction of the 
Board. Staff then recommends that a Board 
Member postpones the approval of the 
resolution to the next available Board Meeting 
no less than 30‐days from the postponement 
to comply with Civil Code §4360¶

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 9 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 8 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 
A California Non-Profit Mutual Benefit Corporation 

(the “Mutual”) 
 

ASSESSMENT/CHARGES GUARANTOR OBLIGATION FORM 
 
A. The Parties 
 
Owner(s):________________________________________________ (collectively, the “Owner”) 
Property Address:__________________________________________(the “Property”) 
Guarantor:________________________________________________(“Guarantor”) 
 
B. Guarantee Payment.  Guarantor hereby guarantees unconditionally to the Mutual and the 
Mutual's agents as follows: 
 

1. Guarantor guarantees unconditionally to be jointly and severally responsible for/liable for all 
Charges related and charged to the Owner's assessment account. 

 
 2. Guarantor guarantees unconditionally to promptly pay for all HOA assessments, regular or 
special, compliance assessments, reimbursable assessments, chargeable services etc., late charges, 
interest, costs, trustee fees, attorney fees, or any other amount charged by the Mutual to the HOA 
assessment account for the Property, including fines, after a noticed hearing before the Board, 
reimbursement assessments, special assessments, chargeable services etc. (collectively, the 
“Charges”.) 
 
   
 
C. Waiver of Right to Demand Enforcement.  Because the Guarantor is jointly and severally liable 
for the Charges, Guarantor guarantees unconditionally to waive any right to require the Mutual or the 
Mutual's agents to proceed against the Owner for any default occurring under the Governing Documents 
before seeking to enforce this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. 
 
D. Broad Interpretation.  This Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form shall be construed 
as a general, absolute, and unconditional Guaranty of payment and shall continue in perpetuity and said 
guarantees shall apply to all amounts charged by the Mutual to the Owner's account during the time 
which the Owner is a title/record owner of the Property. If any of the provisions of this 
Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable 
under applicable law, such provision shall, insofar as possible, be construed or applied in such manner 
as will permit enforcement.   
 
E. Enforcement. 
 

Deleted: 1

Deleted: 2.

Deleted: Guarantor guarantees 
unconditionally to be jointly and severally 
responsible for/liable for all Charges 
related and charged to the Owner's 
assessment account.

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 10 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 9 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

 1. The Mutual may enforce this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form without 
being obligated to resort first to any security or any other remedy against the Owner, and Guarantor 
hereby waives any notice of default and/or any right to cure same and there shall be no presentment or 
dishonor hereunder. 
 
 2. This Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form is general and shall inure to, and 
may be relied upon and enforced by, any successor or assign of the Mutual. 
 
 3. This Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of California and the parties specifically agree that any legal action brought under this 
Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form or any underlying lease shall be brought only in Orange 
County, California, which Court is agreed to have jurisdiction over the parties. 
 
 4. The Parties waive the right to a jury trial in any such legal action. 
 
 5. If the Guarantor breaches this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form, the 
Mutual shall be entitled to a full award of attorney fees, costs and expenses relative to any enforcement 
efforts taken, including any litigation pursued to enforce this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation 
Form. Guarantor agrees to pay the Mutual's actual attorney fees, costs, and expenses in the 
enforcement of the Governing Documents and this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form, 
whether before the lawsuit/proceeding is filed, after the lawsuit/proceeding is filed, or in any and all trial 
and appellate tribunals, whether suit be brought or not, if, after default, counsel shall be employed by the 
Mutual. 
 
 6. All amounts due to the Mutual hereunder shall bear interest at the highest rate allowed by 
law from the date of default. 
 
F. Modification.  Alteration, Modification or Revocation of this Assessment/Charges Guarantor 
Obligation Form is not permitted unless otherwise agreed to and signed by the Parties in writing. 
 
G. No Strict Performance Required.  Failure of the Mutual to insist upon strict performance or 
observance of any of the terms of the Governing Documents or to exercise any right held by the Mutual 
will not diminish the enforceability of this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. Guarantor 
agrees that the foregoing obligations shall in no way be terminated, affected, or impaired by reason of 
any action which the Mutual may take, or fail to take against the Owner, or by reason of any waiver of, or 
failure to enforce, any of the rights or remedies to the Mutual in the Governing Documents and all 
amendments thereto.   
 
H. Binding on Successors.  The obligations of Guarantor shall be binding upon Guarantor and 
his/her/their successors and assigns. 
 
I. Effective Immediately Upon Signature.  Guarantor fully understands this Assessment/Charges 
Guarantor Obligation Form is neither a reference, credit check, nor application, that the Mutual has relied 
on Guarantor’s representations and warranties contained herein and it is fully effective upon Guarantor's 
signature. 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 11 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 10 of 10 
 

Deleted: Introduced July 17

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form is executed this ___ day 
of _________, 20____. 
 
By:___________________________  Dated:__________________________ 
 
Print Name:____________________ 
 
Address:_______________________ 
 
Phone Number:_________________  E-Mail:________________________ 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document 
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF          ) 
 
 On ______________, before me, _________________________, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of California, personally appeared _______________________, who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and 
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
 I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the forgoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 Notary Public  
 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 12 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 1 of 10 
 

RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 
Guidelines For Financial Qualifications 

 
WHEREAS, Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”), acting through its Board of Directors (“Board”), 
previously adopted operating rules concerning financial qualifications pursuant to the following Board 
resolutions: 
 

1. Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualification (Res. No. 03-05-17); 
2. Financial Guarantor (Res. No. M3-91-38); and 
3. Financial Qualifications Policy (Res. No. 03-16-95). 

 
WHEREAS, the forgoing operating rules are collectively referred to herein as the “Financial 
Resolutions”. 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the Mutual’s best interests to protect and preserve its financial integrity, ensure 
consistency among the provisions of its governing documents (including without limitation, the Financial 
Resolutions), and promote the uniform application of the provisions of said governing documents. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on August 21, 2018, that the Board hereby adopts, and the 
Financial Resolutions are hereby superseded by, the Guidelines for Financial Qualifications set forth 
below. 
 

GUIDELINES FOR FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS 
 

The governing documents of Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) require each person seeking to acquire 
an ownership interest in a unit (“Applicant”) to obtain the prior written approval of the Mutual’s Board of 
Directors (“Board”) before doing so. As a condition to obtaining such approval, each Applicant must 
provide to the Board documentation that conclusively establishes that Applicant satisfies certain financial 
requirements as set forth in the Mutual’s governing documents (“Application”). For the purposes of 
determining whether an Application will be approved or denied, the Board has adopted these Guidelines 
for Financial Qualifications (“Guidelines”), which shall remain in effect until such time as these Guidelines 
may be changed, modified, or amended by a duly adopted Board resolution.  
 
I. General Application Requirements. 

 
a. As a condition of approval, each Applicant must submit to the Mutual an Application with 

all of the following documentation provided in a form satisfactory to the Board: 
 
1. A federal income tax return for the most recent year that is signed, dated, and 

includes Schedules A, B and E, as applicable, as well as any other financial 
verification documents requested by the Board. By way of example, but without 
limitation, other verification documents may be required if any Applicant derives 
income from a business owned by the Applicant (personally or through a legal 
entity), in which case the applicable business tax schedule and profit and loss 
statement may also be required.  

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 13 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 2 of 10 
 

 
2. Net worth verification pursuant to Section II of these Guidelines. 

 
3. Income verification pursuant to Section III of these Guidelines. 

 
4. A completed Financial Statement and Credit Information form. 

 
5. Verification of the Applicant’s identity, which must be a natural person, or a 

designated individual acting on behalf of a corporation, LLC or Trust.  
 

6. If the Applicant desires to have a Guarantor to enable the Applicant to Qualify to 
purchase a unit (as defined below), all documents required pursuant to Section IV 
of these Guidelines shall also apply to the Guarantor. 
 

7. If the Applicant desires to purchase more than one (1) unit or already owns at least 
one (1) unit at the Mutual, all documents required pursuant to Section IV of these 
Guidelines shall be required for each unit application. 

 
b. The Board may deny any Application that does not include all of the documentation 

required herein, in a form consistent with these Guidelines and satisfactory to the Board, 
except as otherwise required by law.  
 

c. Any Application (including, without limitation, any document submitted in connection with 
said Application) that contains false or misleading information will be denied.  If an 
Application was approved and it is later determined that such Application contained false 
or misleading information and if escrow had not closed by the time such discovery was 
made the Board may immediately withdraw its approval without the Mutual suffering any 
liability whatsoever.  If escrow, as referenced immediately above, has already closed 
when the discovery of the false and misleading documentation is discovered, the 
Applicant will be deemed an owner, not in good standing and will, after a noticed hearing 
before the Board, be denied the owner’s amenity rights applicable, unless suspended, by 
an owner in the Mutual.  
 

d. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if more than one (1) Applicant 
will acquire an ownership interest or reside in any single unit, such Applicants’ income and 
net worth may, in the Board’s sole reasonable discretion, be calculated collectively.  

 
II. Net Worth Requirements. 

 
a. As a condition of approval, each Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of net 

worth that is greater than or equal to the sum of the purchase price of the unit plus one 
hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($125,000) in acceptable assets.  
 

b. When computing net worth for the purposes of this Section, acceptable assets shall be 
limited to those assets that are considered, in the Board’s sole discretion, to be liquid, 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 14 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 3 of 10 
 

marketable or income producing. Examples of acceptable assets include, without 
limitation, the following:  

 
1. Equity in residential and income real estate. 

 
2. Savings accounts in banks and credit unions. 

 
3. Cash value life insurance. 

 
4. Certificates of deposit and money market accounts. 

 
4. IRA, SEP, 401(k), Profit Sharing and Keogh accounts. 

 
5. Federal, state, or municipal government bonds. 

 
6. U.S. traded investments (e.g., NYSE, Amex, OTC, Nasdaq, etc.) valued at current 

market prices. 
 

7. Mortgages and promissory notes; provided that the interest in such mortgages or 
promissory notes is reported on the Applicant’s tax return. 
 

c. When computing net worth for the purposes of this Section, acceptable assets will not 
include, without limitation, the following: 

 
1. Equity in mobile homes, recreational vehicles, boats, trailers, airplanes, 

automobiles, or other vehicles of any kind. 
 

2. Vacant or undeveloped real estate. 
 

3. Artwork, jewelry, or other collectibles (e.g., coins, dolls, stamps, etc.). 
 

4. Term life insurance. 
 

5. Annuity funds that cannot be withdrawn in lump sum. 
 

6. Anticipated bequests, devises or inheritances. 
 

7. Mortgages and promissory notes where the interest in such mortgages or 
promissory notes is not reported on the Applicant’s tax return. 

 
III. Income Requirements.  

 
a. As a condition of approval, each Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of annual 

income that is greater than or equal to the sum of the total of the unit’s annual mortgage 
payment plus forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) per year.  

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 15 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 4 of 10 
 

 
b. Traditional retirement account assets (e.g., 401K, ERISA, IRA, Profit Sharing, etc.) will be 

considered as a source of annual income in accordance with this subsection. For the 
purposes of the income verification requirement pursuant to subsection (a) above, the 
portion of an Applicant’s traditional retirement account assets attributable to said 
Applicant’s annual income shall be deemed to be the greater of the following: 
 
1. The mandatory annual distributions for the Applicant’s retirement accounts; or 
 
2. The total amount of the Applicant’s retirement accounts multiplied by eighty 

percent (80%), and then dividing this product by twenty-five (25) years, as follows: 
 

Attributable Income = (Total Retirement Account Assets x 80%) ÷ 25 
 

c. Examples of acceptable income verifications include, without limitation, the following: 
 
1. Federal tax returns from the most recent year. 

 
2. W-2 forms or paycheck stubs. 

 
3. Bank, credit union, or investment account statements. 

 
4. Letters from bankers with verifiable first-hand knowledge of the Applicant’s 

finances. 
 

5. Notices of annuities and social security payments. 
 

6. Credit reports. 
 

d. Examples of unacceptable income verifications include, without limitation, the following: 
 

1. Letters from employers, accountants, enrolled agents, investment counselors, or 
attorneys. 
 

2. Any income not reported on federal income tax returns. 
 

IV. Guarantors. 
 
a. In the event any Applicant is unable to satisfy the financial requirements set forth in the 

Mutual’s governing documents (including, without limitation, these Guidelines), the Board 
may permit said Applicant to have a financial guarantor in accordance with this Section IV 
(“Guarantor”).  
 

b. Each Applicant supported by a Guarantor shall submit proof that their primary residence is 
located in California, USA and satisfactory verification of a net worth of at least one 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 16 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 5 of 10 
 

hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($125,000) in acceptable assets, notwithstanding 
the requirements of Section II and Section III of these Guidelines. 
 

c. Each Guarantor shall enter into an agreement with the Mutual to become financially 
responsible, jointly and severally, for all expenses associated with the Applicant’s 
ownership, residency and/or membership at the Mutual (“Assessment/Charges Guarantor 
Obligation Form”). A Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and incorporated in its entirety herein by this reference as if fully set forth in 
these Guidelines.  
 

d. Each Guarantor shall submit all of the following documentation in a form satisfactory to 
the Board: 

 
1. A fully executed and completed Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. 

 
2. Proof that the Guarantor’s primary residence is located in California, USA. 

 
3. Verification of net worth equal to the sum of the purchase price of the unit plus two 

hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) in acceptable assets. 
 

4. Verification that the Guarantor’s annual income is greater than or equal to the sum 
of the total of the unit’s annual mortgage payment plus eighty-thousand dollars 
($80,000) per year. 
 

5. A credit report. 
 

e. The Board may withhold its approval of any Guarantor for, without limitation, any the 
following reasons:  
 
1. A Guarantor or Applicant fails to provide all of the documentation as required by 

subsection (d), above, in a form consistent with these Guidelines and satisfactory 
to the Board. 
 

2. A Guarantor is subject to a bankruptcy proceeding that is pending or has not been 
discharged. 
 

3. Any foreclosure or short sale of any property owned by the Guarantor. 
 

4. Any outstanding balances, collection accounts, or judgments owed by the 
Guarantor. 
 

5. A Guarantor’s credit score is lower than 680. 
 

6. A Guarantor resides in a primary residence outside of the State of California. 
 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 17 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 6 of 10 
 

7. A Guarantor’s bank is located outside of the State of California. 
 

8. A Guarantor already guarantees (1) one or more units within Laguna Woods 
Village.  
 

9. A Guarantor provides any false or misleading information to the Board. 
 

10. Any other reasonable grounds that call into question a Guarantor’s financial ability 
or fitness to serve in this capacity on an Applicant’s behalf.  

 
f. Each Guarantor’s assurances shall only apply to the Applicant(s) and unit expressly 

identified on the Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. No Guarantor’s 
assurances may be transferred to any other Applicant or unit. 
 

V. Multiple Units. As a condition of approval, any Applicant who desires to purchase more than one 
(1) unit or already owns at least one (1) unit at Third Laguna Hills Mutual, Laguna Woods Mutual 
No. Fifty or United Laguna Woods Mutual shall submit satisfactory verification of annual income 
and net worth requirements pursuant to this Section V. 

 
a. Net Worth Requirements. The Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of net worth 

that is greater than or equal to the sum of the purchase price for each unit plus one 
hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($125,000) in acceptable assets per unit, as follows: 

 
 Unit 1: purchase price for Unit 1 + $125,000 

 
 Unit 2:  purchase price for Unit 1 + $125,000 +  
  purchase price for Unit 2 + $125,000 

 
 Unit 3: purchase price for Unit 1 + $125,000 +  
  purchase price for Unit 2 + $125,000 + 
  purchase price for Unit 3 + $125,000  

 
b. Income Requirements. The Applicant shall submit satisfactory verification of annual 

income as follows: 
 

1. Annual Income that is greater than or equal to the sum of the following: the total of 
the first unit’s annual mortgage payment plus forty-five thousand dollars ($45,000) 
per year plus the total of the second unit’s annual mortgage payment plus forty-five 
thousand dollars ($45,000) per year plus an additional twenty-two thousand five 
hundred dollars ($22,500).  

 
2. For each additional unit, the annual income requirement shall be calculated 

consistent with subsection (b)(1), above – that is, the additional unit’s annual 
mortgage payment plus an additional twenty-two thousand five hundred dollars 
($22,500) over the previous annual income requirement, as follows: 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 18 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 7 of 10 
 

 
Unit 1:  annual mortgage payment + $45,000 

 
 Unit 2:  annual mortgage payment on Unit 1 + $45,000 +  

 annual mortgage payment on Unit 2 + $45,000 + $22,500 
 

 Unit 3: annual mortgage payment on Unit 1 + $45,000 +  
 annual mortgage payment on Unit 2 + $45,000 + $22,500 + 
 annual mortgage payment on Unit 2 + $45,000 + $22,500 + $22,500 

 

July Initial Notification 
30‐Day notification to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied.  
 
  

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 19 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 8 of 10 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 
A California Non-Profit Mutual Benefit Corporation 

(the “Mutual”) 
 

ASSESSMENT/CHARGES GUARANTOR OBLIGATION FORM 
 
A. The Parties 
 
Owner(s):________________________________________________ (collectively, the “Owner”) 
Property Address:__________________________________________(the “Property”) 
Guarantor:________________________________________________(“Guarantor”) 
 
B. Guarantee Payment.  Guarantor hereby guarantees unconditionally to the Mutual and the 
Mutual's agents as follows: 
 

1. Guarantor guarantees unconditionally to be jointly and severally responsible for/liable for 
all Charges related and charged to the Owner's assessment account. 
 
 2. Guarantor guarantees unconditionally to promptly pay for all HOA assessments, regular or 
special, compliance assessments, reimbursable assessments, chargeable services etc., late charges, 
interest, costs, trustee fees, attorney fees, or any other amount charged by the Mutual to the HOA 
assessment account for the Property, including fines, after a noticed hearing before the Board, 
reimbursement assessments, special assessments, chargeable services etc. (collectively, the 
“Charges”.) 
 
C. Waiver of Right to Demand Enforcement.  Because the Guarantor is jointly and severally liable 
for the Charges, Guarantor guarantees unconditionally to waive any right to require the Mutual or the 
Mutual's agents to proceed against the Owner for any default occurring under the Governing Documents 
before seeking to enforce this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. 
 
D. Broad Interpretation.  This Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form shall be construed 
as a general, absolute, and unconditional Guaranty of payment and shall continue in perpetuity and said 
guarantees shall apply to all amounts charged by the Mutual to the Owner's account during the time 
which the Owner is a title/record owner of the Property. If any of the provisions of this 
Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable 
under applicable law, such provision shall, insofar as possible, be construed or applied in such manner 
as will permit enforcement.   
 
E. Enforcement. 
 
 1. The Mutual may enforce this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form without 
being obligated to resort first to any security or any other remedy against the Owner, and Guarantor 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 20 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 9 of 10 
 

hereby waives any notice of default and/or any right to cure same and there shall be no presentment or 
dishonor hereunder. 
 
 2. This Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form is general and shall inure to, and 
may be relied upon and enforced by, any successor or assign of the Mutual. 
 
 3. This Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of California and the parties specifically agree that any legal action brought under this 
Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form or any underlying lease shall be brought only in Orange 
County, California, which Court is agreed to have jurisdiction over the parties. 
 
 4. The Parties waive the right to a jury trial in any such legal action. 
 
 5. If the Guarantor breaches this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form, the 
Mutual shall be entitled to a full award of attorney fees, costs and expenses relative to any enforcement 
efforts taken, including any litigation pursued to enforce this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation 
Form. Guarantor agrees to pay the Mutual's actual attorney fees, costs, and expenses in the 
enforcement of the Governing Documents and this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form, 
whether before the lawsuit/proceeding is filed, after the lawsuit/proceeding is filed, or in any and all trial 
and appellate tribunals, whether suit be brought or not, if, after default, counsel shall be employed by the 
Mutual. 
 
 6. All amounts due to the Mutual hereunder shall bear interest at the highest rate allowed by 
law from the date of default. 
 
F. Modification.  Alteration, Modification or Revocation of this Assessment/Charges Guarantor 
Obligation Form is not permitted unless otherwise agreed to and signed by the Parties in writing. 
 
G. No Strict Performance Required.  Failure of the Mutual to insist upon strict performance or 
observance of any of the terms of the Governing Documents or to exercise any right held by the Mutual 
will not diminish the enforceability of this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form. Guarantor 
agrees that the foregoing obligations shall in no way be terminated, affected, or impaired by reason of 
any action which the Mutual may take, or fail to take against the Owner, or by reason of any waiver of, or 
failure to enforce, any of the rights or remedies to the Mutual in the Governing Documents and all 
amendments thereto.   
 
H. Binding on Successors.  The obligations of Guarantor shall be binding upon Guarantor and 
his/her/their successors and assigns. 
 
I. Effective Immediately Upon Signature.  Guarantor fully understands this Assessment/Charges 
Guarantor Obligation Form is neither a reference, credit check, nor application, that the Mutual has relied 
on Guarantor’s representations and warranties contained herein and it is fully effective upon Guarantor's 
signature. 
 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 21 of 22



 

 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Administrative Guidelines for Financial Qualifications  
(Adopted August 21, 2018) 
Page 10 of 10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Assessment/Charges Guarantor Obligation Form is executed this ___ day 
of _________, 20____. 
 
By:___________________________  Dated:__________________________ 
 
Print Name:____________________ 
 
Address:_______________________ 
 
Phone Number:_________________  E-Mail:________________________ 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document 
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF          ) 
 
 On ______________, before me, _________________________, a Notary Public in and for the 
State of California, personally appeared _______________________, who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and 
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
 I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the forgoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 Notary Public  
 

Agenda Item # 12c 
Page 22 of 22



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Revised Common Area Use Policy  

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt the Revised Common Area Use Policy. 

BACKGROUND 

Beginning in March 2002, Third Mutual Board of Directors has adopted a series of Common 
Area Use Policies. These policies addressed numerous items; license agreement for the de 
minimis use of Common Area, Board approval requirements, adoption of a Decision Tree, 
requirements for execution of a recordable Common Area Agreement, and establishment of 
the Architectural Control and Standards Committee (Committee). On July 20, 2017, via 
Resolution 03-17-77, the Board adopted the Common Area Use Policy (Policy) 

DISCUSSION 

Resolution 03-17-77 explained the background of Common Area use and set forth policies for 
Staff, the Committee, and the Board to use when evaluating alteration requests. The policy 
detailed various circumstances and procedures to use when evaluating alteration requests, 
and specifically, requests for exclusive use of Common Area. 

Due to the administrative, financial, and legal burdens involved with such requests, the Board 
consulted with legal counsel and has determined that it is not in the Mutual’s best interests to 
approve any alteration applications that require the use of Common Area, other than de 
minimis or when required by law. 

The proposed policy states that proposed alterations that are intended to be located on or over 
a portion of the Common Area will be not be approved by the Board for any reason, except as 
set forth pursuant to the Policy or as otherwise required by law. The attached Resolution has 
been reviewed and approved by legal counsel. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None. 

Prepared By: Kurt Wiemann, Permits, Inspections and Restoration Manager 

Reviewed By: Eve Morton, Alterations Coordinator 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 1 of 15



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Revised Common Area Use Policy 
8/21/18 
Page 2 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Resolution 03-17-77, Existing Common Area Use Policy 
Attachment 2: Proposed Resolution 03-18-XX, Revised Common Area Use Policy 
Attachment 3: Resolution 03-18-XX, Revised Common Area Use Policy; Redlines 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 2 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

RESOLUTION 03-17-77 
 

Common Area Use Policy (Current Policy) 
 

WHEREAS, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) is the corporate homeowner 
association that was formed in 1988 by the merger of the fifty-nine (59) separate 
corporate homeowner associations, which initially managed the fifty-nine (59) original 
condominium projects within the larger Leisure World (now Laguna Woods Village) 
common interest development, into the one consolidated condominium homeowner 
association.  The decisions of the Mutual’s Board of Directors (“Board”), and any 
committees, task forces, etc., appointed by the Board, are governed or regulated by the 
Mutual’s Governing Documents, the City of Laguna Woods and Orange County codes, 
and California and federal Law and regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Mutual’s Board recognizes that both new and existing Manor Owners 
may desire to upgrade or modify their Manors or elements thereof in style, structure or 
function.  The current Mutual Board, prior Mutual Boards, and the Boards of the 
predecessor original condominium project mutual homeowner associations, have from 
time-to-time adopted policies and procedures to approve such Manor Alteration 
Applications in limited circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, the Mutual’s current Governing Documents require that all such Manor 
Alteration Applications be approved either by the Architectural Control Committee, 
which may either be the Board itself or a separate committee of Members appointed by 
the Board, or by the Mutual’s Manager, Village Management Services, Inc. (“staff”), 
where VMSI is so authorized; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article X of the Mutual’s Declaration of Revised and Amended 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (“CC&Rs”) and Article 7 of the Mutual’s Bylaws, 
the Board, by Resolution 03-16-128, dated December 20, 2016, has formed an 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“Committee”) to perform the functions 
described therein; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV, Section 2, Clause (c); Article IV, Section 5; and 
Article X, Section 1, Clause (c), of the CC&Rs, the Board has delegated, with continuing 
oversight by the Committee, authority to its Manager, and staff to receive, evaluate, and 
make recommendations to the Committee and the Board to approve or deny Manor 
Alteration Applications; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has been advised by legal counsel that the California Civil Code 
generally prohibits the Board from approving the transfer of the use of any portion of the 
Common Area, as defined in the CC&Rs, (“Common Area”) to an individual Manor 
Owner, without first obtaining prior written approval of at least sixty-seven percent (67%) 
of the Manor Owners in that Manor’s original condominium project’s mutual homeowner 
association unless the grant of such exclusive use falls within one of the statutory 
exceptions, found in Section 4600 of the California Civil Code, eliminating the 
requirement for such approval vote; and  

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 3 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, one of the Mutual’s Governing Documents is the Condominium Plan, which 
shows a detailed, three-dimensional diagram of each of the Manors in the Mutual, 
including the Manor’s Separate Interest and any appurtenant Exclusive/Limited Use 
Common Area, as well as the Manor building’s detailed footprint on the ground, which 
also shows the surrounding land that is designated as Common Area.  The Board has 
been advised by legal counsel that California state law prohibits the Board from 
amending that Condominium Plan without first obtaining the prior written approval of 
one hundred percent (100%) of all the Manor Owners and mortgage holders in that 
Manor’s original project’s mutual homeowner association; and   

WHEREAS, prior Mutual boards, as well as the current Board, have noted that over the 
years some Mutual Manor Owners have, both with and without Board authorization, 
made alterations to their Manors or to the immediately contiguous areas, which have 
affected relatively small sections of the Mutual’s Common Area.  Typically those 
alterations have involved enclosing patios that are Exclusive Use Common Area and 
sometimes have also involved extending that enclosure onto general Common Area, or 
the alterations have affected the landscape and hardscape contiguous to a Manor; and 

WHEREAS, in some cases these alterations may not have met the Mutual’s then 
current Architectural Alteration Standards, notwithstanding the fact that the alteration 
may have enhanced the value of the Manor and possibly the community as well; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that for it, or the Committee, or staff to identify each 
prior alteration and determine whether or not it is non-conforming and/or unauthorized 
would be expensive and time consuming, and would be disruptive to the community and 
its residents.  Further, to correct this situation could, and perhaps would, require 
expensive and time-consuming litigation, the results of which would be uncertain, since 
in many cases the alterations have been in place for many years without knowledge of 
the Board and therefore no objection being made by the Mutual, and many of the 
Manors have changed owners since the alteration.  This Board has concluded that such 
a general undertaking would not be in the best interests of the owners of undivided 
interests in the Mutual’s general Common Area; and  

WHEREAS, the Committee and the Board have reviewed and reconsidered the 
Mutual’s current policies and procedures regarding Manor Alteration Applications to 
ensure proper procedures are in place at the Mutual on a going-forward basis with 
regard to alterations by Members; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, July 20, 2017, that the Board has a “Decision 
Tree”, “Neighbor Awareness Notice of Hearing”, and “Common Area Agreement Form”, 
and the Board hereby adopts the policy outlined in this Resolution  to govern staff’s, the 
Committee’s and the Board’s decision process when Manor Owners apply to the Mutual 
for authorization to make or construct an Alteration to or within the Manor’s Separate 
Interest; to, upon or within the Exclusive Use Common Area; or upon or over some 
portion of the Mutual’s Common Area (all as defined in the CC&Rs and the 
Condominium Plan); and 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 4 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, in limited circumstances, defined from time-to-time 
by the Committee and approved by the Board, staff may, but is not obligated to; 
approve Manor Alteration Applications that meet pre-established Third Architectural 
Alteration Standards and other Board and Committee approved policies and 
procedures, and that do not raise an objection by the owner of a neighboring Manor 
“those within 150 feet”.  Any Manor Alteration Application that cannot or will not be 
approved by staff for any reason will be treated as a unique Variance Request to be 
investigated by staff and considered by the Committee for approval or denial, with 
potential appeal of the Committee’s decision to the Board, all in accordance with the 
Mutual’s Governing Documents; and  

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the staff, the Committee, or the Board, as may be 
applicable, shall consider the following factors when evaluating whether to approve a 
Manor Alteration Application: 

(1) The Alteration must be consistent with: 

(a) the Mutual’s governing documents, including the then current Third 
Architectural Alteration Standards; and 

(b) the Mutual’s then current architectural and building guidelines; and 

(c) any other approved staff (as may be applicable), Committee and Board 
policies and procedures; and 

(d) the applicable provisions of local building codes; and 

(e) California state law and regulations; and 

(f) federal law and regulations; and 

(g) the Mutual’s Conditions of Approval for the Improvement Project. 

(2) If the proposed Alteration would potentially affect the residents of a 
neighboring manor, then staff will mail to the owner of the affected neighboring 
manor, a Neighbor Awareness Notice of Hearing; and  

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the proposed Alteration is to be located entirely 
within or upon an Exclusive Use Common Area already associated with the Manor, 
staff, as authorized, the Committee or the Board may, but is not obligated to, approve 
the Manor Alteration Application, provided the Alteration is in compliance with the 
Mutual’s then current Third Architectural Alteration Standards and any other approved 
Committee and Board policies, and is also permissible under the Mutual’s Governing 
Documents. Compliance with the Mutual’s Third Architectural Alteration Standards and 
building guidelines shall be a threshold required for approval of any Manor Alteration 
Application, subject to the discretion granted to staff, the Committee, or the Board, as 
may be applicable, whether the Alteration would be located within a Manor’s Separate 
Interest, to, within or upon Exclusive Use Common Area, or upon or over Common 
Area; and  

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 5 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the proposed Alteration is to be located upon or 
over a portion of the Common Area, staff, as authorized, the Committee or the Board 
may, but is not obligated to, approve the Manor Alteration Application only in: the very 
limited circumstances to be described in the Decision Tree, the current Third 
Architectural Alteration Standards, and any other approved Committee and Board 
policies; and only if the Alteration would also be permissible under the Mutual’s 
Governing Documents or applicable law; and  

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the staff, as authorized, the Committee or the 
Board decides to approve a Manor Owner’s Application to make or construct an 
Alteration to, within or upon an Exclusive Use Common Area associated with that 
Manor, or upon or over a portion of the Common Area, that Manor Owner must, as a 
condition to receiving final approval for the Manor Alteration Application, execute a 
recordable Covenant/Common Area Agreement.  Such Covenant/Common Area 
Agreement shall provide, among other things, that the Manor Owner agrees that the 
area in question shall remain Exclusive Use Common Area or general Common Area, 
as applicable, licensed for the exclusive use of the Manor Owner, but shall not also 
become a part of the Manor’s Separate Interest or, in the case of Common Area, 
Exclusive Use Common Area.  The Covenant/Common Area Agreement will also 
require that the Manor Owner shall assume the responsibility for insuring, maintaining, 
repairing, replacing and restoring the area containing the Alteration, and shall agree to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Mutual for any and all claims pertaining to the 
Alteration; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board, within the limits of its current authority, 
hereby “grandfathers” any existing Alteration to any of the Manors located within the 
original condominium projects, or the area immediately adjacent to that Manor, which 
have been previously approved by this Board or a prior board of directors of the Mutual 
and constructed prior to the effective date of this Resolution, July 20, 2017, even though 
that Alteration may encroach upon some portion of the general Common Area, provided 
that: 

(1) there is no threat to the safety of persons or property; 

(2) the Alteration met the Mutual’s construction and architectural standards in 
effect at the time of the Alteration; and 

(3) there is no direction or order of a court requiring the Board to take contrary 
action; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that “grandfathering” any such encroachment did not, 
does not, and will not constitute a transfer of general Common Area into any Manor’s 
Exclusive Use Common Area or Separate Interest, or the conversion of Exclusive Use 
Common Area into a Manor’s Separate Interest. Such “grandfathering” does not remove 
the obligation of a Member/Owner of a non-compliant Alteration to a Manor to correct 
such non-compliance in the event of a sale or transfer of their Manor, but merely means 
that such non-conformance will not be actively pursued by the Mutual; and  

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 6 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board may, subject to the limitations provided in this 
Resolution, the Governing Documents, and applicable law, demand that any Alteration, 
not consistent with the Mutual’s Third Architectural Alteration Standards and other 
Mutual and VMSI policies and procedures published at the time of construction of said 
Alteration, be removed, at the Manor Owner’s expense, if the Alteration is not either 
altered or reconstructed to be in conformity with such Third Architectural Alteration 
Standards, state and local building codes, and other Mutual and VMSI policies and 
procedures; and   

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board may demand the removal of any 
Alteration that is constructed after the effective date of this Resolution, July 20, 2017, 
without the prior written approval of staff, the Committee or the Board; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, in accordance with the Mutual’s CC&Rs, the 
existence in the Mutual of a prior Alteration comparable to an Alteration being sought by 
a Manor Owner shall have no precedential value and shall not obligate in any way staff, 
the Committee or the Board to approve any subsequent Manor Alteration Application; 
and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Mutual Board Resolution 03-16-128 is hereby 
amended as follows: 

Paragraph 2, Section 3: 

“3. If a Member chooses to appeal the Committee’s decision, prior to the review of the 
appeal, the Committee will document justification of their decision.  If necessary, the 
Committee has the authority to consult with the Mutual Legal Counsel for advice.”  

Paragraph 2, Section 5: 

“5.  The Committee shall require that Neighbor Awareness Notice of Hearing be mailed, 
by staff, to the owners of record of all potentially affected neighboring Manors, for all 
alteration requests, including requests that appear to conform to the Third 
Architectural Alteration Standards and policies.”; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the following Mutual Board Resolutions are hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 

Resolution M3-02-14, dated March 19, 2002; and 

Resolution 03-15-155, dated October 20, 2015; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that staff charged with the responsibility of receiving, 
evaluating, approving or making recommendations for approval of Manor Alteration 
Applications; and overseeing construction of additions, modification, improvements, and 
such other Alterations to the Manors within the Mutual are hereby authorized to take all 
appropriate actions consistent with this Resolution and to carry out the purpose and 
intent of this Resolution and assure compliance with its terms. 

 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 7 of 15



this page intentionally left blank



ATTACHMENT 2 

1 

RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 

Common Area Use Policy 

WHEREAS, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual, (“Mutual”) is a corporate homeowners 
association that was formed in 1970; by 1984 had acquired the assets and liabilities by 
vote of each of the fifty-nine (59) individual Mutuals within the larger Leisure World (now 
Laguna Woods Village) common interest development, with full authority to manage, 
operate, and maintain them. By 1988, each of the fifty-nine (59) Mutuals had agreed by 
vote of each Mutual’s membership to adopt the same amended CC&Rs. 

WHEREAS, the decisions of the Mutual’s Board of Directors (“Board”), and any 
committees, task forces, etc., appointed by the Board, are governed or regulated by the 
Mutual’s Governing Documents, the City of Laguna Woods and Orange County codes, 
and California and federal Laws and Regulations; 

WHEREAS, the Mutual’s Board recognizes that both new and existing Manor Owners 
may desire to upgrade or alter their Manors or elements thereof in style, structure or 
function. The current Mutual Board, prior Mutual Boards, and the Boards of the 
predecessor original condominium project mutual homeowner associations, have from 
time-to-time adopted policies and procedures to approve such Manor Alteration 
Applications in limited circumstances; 

WHEREAS, the Mutual’s current Governing Documents require that all such Manor 
Alteration Applications be approved either by the Architectural Control Committee, 
which may either be the Board itself or a separate committee of Members appointed by 
the Board, or by the Mutual’s Manager, Village Management Services, Inc. (“Staff”), 
where VMSI is so authorized; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article X of the Mutual’s Declaration of Revised and Amended 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (“CC&Rs”) and Article 7 of the Mutual’s Bylaws, 
the Board, by Resolution 03-16-128, dated December 20, 2016, has formed an 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“Committee”) to perform the functions 
described therein; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV, Section 2, Clause (c); Article IV, Section 5; and 
Article X, Section 1, Clause (c), of the CC&Rs, the Board has delegated, with continuing 
oversight by the Committee, authority to its Manager and Staff to receive, evaluate, and 
make recommendations to the Committee and the Board to approve or deny Manor 
Alteration Applications; 

WHEREAS, the current Board, as well as prior Mutual boards, have noted that over the 
years that some manor Owners have made alterations to their Manors or to the 
immediately contiguous areas, both with and without Board authorization, which have 
affected relatively small sections of the Mutual’s Common Area. Typically those 
alterations have involved enclosing patios that are Exclusive Use Common Area and 
occasionally have also involved extending that enclosure onto general Common Area, 
or the alterations have affected the landscape and hardscape contiguous to a Manor; 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 8 of 15



ATTACHMENT 2 

2 

WHEREAS, in some cases these alterations may not have met the Mutual’s then 
current Architectural Alteration Standards, notwithstanding the fact that the alteration 
may have enhanced the value of the Manor and possibly the community as well; 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that to identify each prior alteration and determine 
whether or not it is non-conforming and/or unauthorized would be expensive, time 
consuming and disruptive to the community and its residents.  This Board has 
concluded that such an undertaking would not be in the best interests of the owners of 
undivided interests in the Mutual’s general Common Area; 

WHEREAS, the Committee and the Board have reviewed and reconsidered the 
Mutual’s current policies and procedures regarding Manor Alteration Applications to 
ensure proper procedures are in place in the Mutual on a going-forward basis with 
regard to alterations by Members; 

WHEREAS, among other things, the Common Area Use Policy sets forth very limited 
circumstances where the Mutual’s Board, Committee or Staff, would approve a 
proposed alteration of, addition to, or improvement of any Manor (“Alteration”) that 
would be located upon or over a portion of the common area; and, 

WHEREAS, due to the administrative, financial, and legal burdens involved, the Board 
and the Committee have determined that it is not in the Association’s best interests to 
approve any Manor Alteration Applications that do not satisfy the very limited 
circumstances defined from time to time by the Committee and approved by the Board. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, that the Board has prepared 
a “Decision Tree”, “Neighbor Awareness Notice of Hearing” form, and “Covenant To 
Run With The Land form”, and the Board hereby introduces the policy outlined in 
this Resolution to govern the Board’s, the Committee’s and Staff’s decision process 
when Manor Owners apply to the Mutual for authorization to make or construct an 
Alteration to or within the Manor’s Separate Interest; to, upon or within the 
Exclusive Use Common Area; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, no proposed Alteration located upon or over a portion of 
the common area will be approved by the Board, the Committee or Staff for any reason, 
except as set forth pursuant to the Policy or as otherwise required by law; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, in limited circumstances, as set forth in the Policy, 
Staff may, but is not obligated to; approve Manor Alteration Applications that meet pre-
established Third Architectural Alteration Standards and other Board and Committee 
approved policies and procedures, and that do not raise an objection by the owner of a 
neighboring Manor which is defined as manors “within 150 feet” of the proposed manor 
Alteration Application.  Any Manor Alteration Application that cannot or will not be 
approved by Staff for any reason will be treated as a unique Variance Request to be 
investigated by Staff and considered by the Committee for approval or denial, with 
potential appeal of the Committee’s decision to the Board, all in accordance with the 
Mutual’s Governing Documents; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the proposed Alteration is to be located entirely 
within or upon an Exclusive Use Common Area already associated with the Manor, 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 9 of 15



ATTACHMENT 2 

3 

Staff, as authorized, the Committee or the Board may, but is not obligated to, approve 
the Manor Alteration Application, provided the Alteration is in compliance with the 
Mutual’s Architectural Review Procedures, subject to the discretion granted to Staff, the 
Committee, or the Board, as may be applicable, whether the Alteration would be located 
within a Manor’s Separate Interest, to, within or upon Exclusive Use Common Area;  

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the Staff, as authorized, the Committee or the 
Board decides to approve a Manor Owner’s Application to make or construct an 
Alteration to, within or upon an Exclusive Use Common Area associated with that 
Manor, that Manor Owner must, as a condition to receiving final approval for the Manor 
Alteration Application, execute a recordable Covenant to Run with the Land.  Such 
Covenant shall provide, among other things that the Manor Owner agrees that the area 
altered in any dimension or manner, shall remain Exclusive Use Common Area, 
licensed for the exclusive use of the Manor Owner, but shall not also become a part of 
the Manor’s Separate Interest.  The Covenant will also require that the Manor Owner 
shall assume the responsibility for insuring, maintaining, repairing, replacing and 
restoring the area containing the Alteration, and shall agree to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Mutual for any and all claims pertaining to the Alteration; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board, within the limits of its current authority, 
hereby “grandfathers” any existing Alteration to any of the Manors located within the 
original condominium projects, or to the area immediately adjacent to that Manor, which 
have been previously approved by this Board,  a prior board of directors of the Mutual, a 
board of directors or the architectural committee of a predecessor original condominium 
project mutual homeowner association, or the Staff of a prior management agent, if that 
Staff were so authorized, prior to July 20, 2017, even though that Alteration may 
encroach upon some portion of the general Common Area, provided that: 

(1) there is no threat to the safety of persons or property; 

(2) the Alteration met the Mutual’s construction and architectural standards in 
effect at the time of the Alteration; and 

(3) there is no direction or order of a court requiring the Board to take contrary 
action; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that “grandfathering” any such encroachment did not, 
does not, and will not constitute a transfer of general Common Area into any Manor’s 
Exclusive Use Common Area or Separate Interest, or the conversion of Exclusive Use 
Common Area into a Manor’s Separate Interest. Such “grandfathering” does not remove 
the obligation of a Member/Owner of a non-compliant Alteration to a Manor to correct 
such non-compliance in the event of a sale or transfer of their Manor, but merely means 
that such non-conformance will not be actively pursued by the Mutual; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that no further alteration may be approved or 
constructed on any previously approved or “grandfathered” alteration that encroaches 
upon common area, other than like for like, that augments, enlarges, or changes the 
construction, purpose, or use of the alteration; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board may, subject to the limitations provided in 
this Resolution, the Governing Documents, and applicable law, demand that any 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 10 of 15



ATTACHMENT 2 

4 

Alteration, not consistent with the Mutual’s Third Architectural Alteration Standards and 
other Mutual and VMSI policies and procedures published at the time of construction of 
said Alteration, be removed, at the Manor Owner’s expense, if the Alteration is not 
either altered or reconstructed to be in conformity with such Third Architectural 
Alteration Standards, state and local building codes, and other Mutual and VMSI 
policies and procedures; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board may demand the removal of any 
Alteration that is constructed after July 20, 2017, without the prior written approval of 
Staff, the Committee or the Board; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, in accordance with the Mutual’s CC&Rs, the 
existence in the Mutual of a prior Alteration comparable to an Alteration being sought by 
a Manor Owner shall have no precedential value and shall not obligate in any way Staff, 
the Committee or the Board to approve any subsequent Manor Alteration Application; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Mutual Board Resolution 03-17-77 is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Staff is charged with the responsibility of receiving, 
evaluating, approving or making recommendations for approval of Manor Alteration 
Applications; and overseeing construction of additions, modification, improvements, and 
such other Alterations to the Manors within the Mutual are hereby authorized to take all 
appropriate actions consistent with this Resolution and to carry out the purpose and 
intent of this Resolution and assure compliance with its terms. 

AUGUST Initial Notification
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to accept 
the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then 
recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board Meeting no less than 30-
days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 11 of 15



 
ATTACHMENT 3 

REDLINES 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 03-18-XX 
 

Common Area Use Policy 
 

WHEREAS, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual, (“Mutual”) is a corporate homeowners 
association that was formed in 1970; by 1984 had acquired the assets and liabilities by 
vote of each of the fifty-nine (59) individual Mutuals within the larger Leisure World (now 
Laguna Woods Village) common interest development, with full authority to manage, 
operate, and maintain them. By 1988, each of the fifty-nine (59) Mutuals had agreed by 
vote of each Mutual’s membership to adopt the same amended CC&Rs. 

WHEREAS, the decisions of the Mutual’s Board of Directors (“Board”), and any 
committees, task forces, etc., appointed by the Board, are governed or regulated by the 
Mutual’s Governing Documents, the City of Laguna Woods and Orange County codes, 
and California and federal Laws and Regulations; 

WHEREAS, the Mutual’s Board recognizes that both new and existing Manor Owners 
may desire to upgrade or alter their Manors or elements thereof in style, structure or 
function. The current Mutual Board, prior Mutual Boards, and the Boards of the 
predecessor original condominium project mutual homeowner associations, have from 
time-to-time adopted policies and procedures to approve such Manor Alteration 
Applications in limited circumstances; 

WHEREAS, the Mutual’s current Governing Documents require that all such Manor 
Alteration Applications be approved either by the Architectural Control Committee, 
which may either be the Board itself or a separate committee of Members appointed by 
the Board, or by the Mutual’s Manager, Village Management Services, Inc. (“Staff”), 
where VMSI is so authorized; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article X of the Mutual’s Declaration of Revised and Amended 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (“CC&Rs”) and Article 7 of the Mutual’s Bylaws, 
the Board, by Resolution 03-16-128, dated December 20, 2016, has formed an 
Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“Committee”) to perform the functions 
described therein; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IV, Section 2, Clause (c); Article IV, Section 5; and 
Article X, Section 1, Clause (c), of the CC&Rs, the Board has delegated, with continuing 
oversight by the Committee, authority to its Manager and Staff to receive, evaluate, and 
make recommendations to the Committee and the Board to approve or deny Manor 
Alteration Applications; 

WHEREAS, the current Board, as well as prior Mutual boards, have noted that over the 
years that some manor Owners have made alterations to their Manors or to the 
immediately contiguous areas, both with and without Board authorization, which have 
affected relatively small sections of the Mutual’s Common Area. Typically those 
alterations have involved enclosing patios that are Exclusive Use Common Area and  
occasionally have also involved extending that enclosure onto general Common Area, 
or the alterations have affected the landscape and hardscape contiguous to a Manor; 

Formatted: Top:  0.63", Bottom:  0.69"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Deleted: ¶

Deleted:  Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) 
is the corporate homeowner association that 
was formed in 1988 by the merger of the fifty-
nine (59) separate corporate homeowner 
associations, which initially managed the fifty-
nine (59) original condominium projects within 
the larger Leisure World (now Laguna Woods 
Village) common interest development, into the 
one consolidated condominium homeowner 
association.  The 

Deleted: modify 

Deleted:   

Deleted: staff

Deleted: staff

Deleted: as well as the current Board, 

Deleted:  Mutual

Deleted: M

Deleted:  have, both with and without Board 
authorization,

Deleted:  

Deleted: sometimes

Deleted:  and

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 12 of 15



 
ATTACHMENT 3 

REDLINES 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, in some cases these alterations may not have met the Mutual’s then 
current Architectural Alteration Standards, notwithstanding the fact that the alteration 
may have enhanced the value of the Manor and possibly the community as well; 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that to identify each prior alteration and determine 
whether or not it is non-conforming and/or unauthorized would be expensive, time 
consuming and disruptive to the community and its residents.  This Board has 
concluded that such an undertaking would not be in the best interests of the owners of 
undivided interests in the Mutual’s general Common Area; 

WHEREAS, the Committee and the Board have reviewed and reconsidered the 
Mutual’s current policies and procedures regarding Manor Alteration Applications to 
ensure proper procedures are in place in the Mutual on a going-forward basis with 
regard to alterations by Members; 

WHEREAS, among other things, the Common Area Use Policy sets forth very limited 
circumstances where the Mutual’s Board, Committee or Staff, would approve a 
proposed alteration of, addition to, or improvement of any Manor (“Alteration”) that 
would be located upon or over a portion of the common area; and, 

WHEREAS, due to the administrative, financial, and legal burdens involved, the Board 
and the Committee have determined that it is not in the Association’s best interests to 
approve any Manor Alteration Applications that do not satisfy the very limited 
circumstances defined from time to time by the Committee and approved by the Board. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, that the Board has prepared 
a “Decision Tree”, “Neighbor Awareness Notice of Hearing” form, and “Covenant To 
Run With The Land form”, and the Board hereby adopts the policy outlined in this 
Resolution to govern the Board’s, the Committee’s and Staff’s decision process when 
Manor Owners apply to the Mutual for authorization to make or construct an Alteration 
to or within the Manor’s Separate Interest; to, upon or within the Exclusive Use 
Common Area; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, no proposed Alteration located upon or over a portion of 
the common area will be approved by the Board, the Committee or Staff for any reason, 
except as set forth pursuant to the Policy or as otherwise required by law; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, in limited circumstances, as set forth in the Policy, 
Staff may, but is not obligated to; approve Manor Alteration Applications that meet pre-
established Third Architectural Alteration Standards and other Board and Committee 
approved policies and procedures, and that do not raise an objection by the owner of a 
neighboring Manor which is defined as manors “within 150 feet” of the proposed manor 
Alteration Application.  Any Manor Alteration Application that cannot or will not be 
approved by Staff for any reason will be treated as a unique Variance Request to be 
investigated by Staff and considered by the Committee for approval or denial, with 
potential appeal of the Committee’s decision to the Board, all in accordance with the 
Mutual’s Governing Documents; 

Deleted: for it, or the Committee, or staff 

Deleted:  and

Deleted: ,

Deleted: would be 

Deleted: general 

Deleted: at 

Deleted:  and

Deleted: staff

Deleted: :

Deleted: set forth in the Policy

Deleted:  

Deleted: staff’s

Deleted: the Board’s 

Deleted: staff

Deleted: defined from time-to-time by the 
Committee and approved by the Board

Deleted: staff

Deleted: staff

Deleted: staff

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 13 of 15



 
ATTACHMENT 3 

REDLINES 
 

3 
 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the proposed Alteration is to be located entirely 
within or upon an Exclusive Use Common Area already associated with the Manor, 
Staff, as authorized, the Committee or the Board may, but is not obligated to, approve 
the Manor Alteration Application, provided the Alteration is in compliance with the 
Mutual’s Architectural Review Procedures, subject to the discretion granted to Staff, the 
Committee, or the Board, as may be applicable, whether the Alteration would be located 
within a Manor’s Separate Interest, to, within or upon Exclusive Use Common Area;  

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, if the Staff, as authorized, the Committee or the 
Board decides to approve a Manor Owner’s Application to make or construct an 
Alteration to, within or upon an Exclusive Use Common Area associated with that 
Manor, that Manor Owner must, as a condition to receiving final approval for the Manor 
Alteration Application, execute a recordable Covenant to Run with the Land.  Such 
Covenant shall provide, among other things that the Manor Owner agrees that the area 
altered in any dimension or manner, shall remain Exclusive Use Common Area, 
licensed for the exclusive use of the Manor Owner, but shall not also become a part of 
the Manor’s Separate Interest.  The Covenant will also require that the Manor Owner 
shall assume the responsibility for insuring, maintaining, repairing, replacing and 
restoring the area containing the Alteration, and shall agree to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Mutual for any and all claims pertaining to the Alteration; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board, within the limits of its current authority, 
hereby “grandfathers” any existing Alteration to any of the Manors located within the 
original condominium projects, or to the area immediately adjacent to that Manor, which 
have been previously approved by this Board,  a prior board of directors of the Mutual, a 
board of directors or the architectural committee of a predecessor original condominium 
project mutual homeowner association, or the Staff of a prior management agent, if that 
Staff were so authorized, prior to July 20, 2017, even though that Alteration may 
encroach upon some portion of the general Common Area, provided that: 

(1) there is no threat to the safety of persons or property; 

(2) the Alteration met the Mutual’s construction and architectural standards in 
effect at the time of the Alteration; and 

(3) there is no direction or order of a court requiring the Board to take contrary 
action; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that “grandfathering” any such encroachment did not, 
does not, and will not constitute a transfer of general Common Area into any Manor’s 
Exclusive Use Common Area or Separate Interest, or the conversion of Exclusive Use 
Common Area into a Manor’s Separate Interest. Such “grandfathering” does not remove 
the obligation of a Member/Owner of a non-compliant Alteration to a Manor to correct 
such non-compliance in the event of a sale or transfer of their Manor, but merely means 
that such non-conformance will not be actively pursued by the Mutual; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that no further alteration may be approved or 
constructed on any previously approved or “grandfathered” alteration that encroaches 

Deleted: staff

Deleted: staff

Deleted: staff

Deleted: in question 

Deleted: ¶

Deleted:  

Deleted: or

Deleted: and constructed 

Deleted:  

Formatted: Font: Bold

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 14 of 15



 
ATTACHMENT 3 

REDLINES 
 

4 
 

upon common area, other than like for like, that augments, enlarges, or changes the 
construction, purpose, or use of the alteration; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board may, subject to the limitations provided in 
this Resolution, the Governing Documents, and applicable law, demand that any 
Alteration, not consistent with the Mutual’s Third Architectural Alteration Standards and 
other Mutual and VMSI policies and procedures published at the time of construction of 
said Alteration, be removed, at the Manor Owner’s expense, if the Alteration is not 
either altered or reconstructed to be in conformity with such Third Architectural 
Alteration Standards, state and local building codes, and other Mutual and VMSI 
policies and procedures; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board may demand the removal of any 
Alteration that is constructed after July 20, 2017, without the prior written approval of 
Staff, the Committee or the Board; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that, in accordance with the Mutual’s CC&Rs, the 
existence in the Mutual of a prior Alteration comparable to an Alteration being sought by 
a Manor Owner shall have no precedential value and shall not obligate in any way Staff, 
the Committee or the Board to approve any subsequent Manor Alteration Application; 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Mutual Board Resolution 03-17-77 is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; and 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Staff is charged with the responsibility of receiving, 
evaluating, approving or making recommendations for approval of Manor Alteration 
Applications; and overseeing construction of additions, modification, improvements, and 
such other Alterations to the Manors within the Mutual are hereby authorized to take all 
appropriate actions consistent with this Resolution and to carry out the purpose and 
intent of this Resolution and assure compliance with its terms. 

 

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Deleted: staff

Deleted: staff

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: staff

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 15 of 15



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Vehicle Traffic and Parking Rules, Section 7.6 
   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Revise the Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules by removing the exception to the rule that allows 
GRF owned vehicles and equipment to be parked within numbered cul-de-sacs or manor 
parking lots. 
 

BACKGROUND 

 
At the July 27, 2018 Parking and Golf Cart Task Force meeting, the parking rules and 
regulations were reviewed and discussed. 
 
Staff was directed to add a review of Section 7.6 Contractor and Service Vehicle Parking, to the 
Third Board agenda. 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Due to the limited parking spaces throughout Third Mutual, contractor vehicles are only allowed 
to park on named streets and are prohibited from parking within numbered cul-de-sacs or 
manor parking lots. 
 
There are exceptions to this rule that allow GRF owned vehicles and equipment to park in these 
areas while working.  President di Lorenzo would like the Third Board to strike this exception 
from Section 7.6 (Attachment 1). 
 
Resolution 03-14-44 would need to be amended to reflect the change (Attachment 2). 
 
Currently, staff has been directed to only park on named streets except while loading or 
unloading the necessary equipment for repair work. 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

 
None.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 1 of 4



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules, Section 7.6 
August 21, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Prepared By:  Laurie Chavarria, Executive Assistant 
 
    
Reviewed By:  Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance & Construction Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
Attachment 1 – TLHM Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules, Section 7.6 
Attachment 2 – Proposed Resolution 03-18-XXX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 2 of 4



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules, Section 7.6 
August 21, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

Attachment 1 – TLHM Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules, Section 7.6 
 

7.6 CONTRACTOR and SERVICE VEHICLE PARKING 
Contractor and service vehicles, including personal vehicles driven by workers, must be parked 
on named streets and are prohibited from parking within numbered cul-de-sacs or MANOR 
parking lots.   

 Contractors may park on a SPONSORING RESIDENT’S driveway with the RESIDENT’S 
permission, but may not obstruct the sidewalk. 

EXCEPTIONS: 
o Vehicles, equipment and materials immediately and directly required for the 

performance of work.  

o Vehicles immediately loading or unloading. 

o GRF owned vehicles and equipment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 3 of 4



this page intentionally left blank



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules, Section 7.6 
August 21, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

Attachment 2 – Proposed Resolution 03-18-XXX 
 

RESOLUTION 03-18-XXX 
 

Traffic Rules and Regulations 
 
WHEREAS, by way of Resolution 03-14-44 the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation has adopted standards for traffic enforcement and parking 
enforcement, and in an effort to provide comprehensive traffic rules and regulations 
enforceable to the residents of Third Mutual, both standards have been 
consolidated to improve consistency within the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Traffic Rules and Regulations are intended to mirror the California 
Vehicle Code and to adhere to the Davis-Stirling Act; 
 
WHEREAS, due to the limited parking spaces throughout Third Mutual, contractor 
vehicles are only allowed to park on named streets and are prohibited from parking 
within numbered cul-de-sacs or manor parking lots; 
 
WHEREAS, there is an exception to this rule in Section 7.6 Contractor and Service 
Vehicle Parking, that allow GRF owned vehicles and equipment to park in these 
areas while working.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the revised Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Vehicle, Traffic, and Parking Rules, as attached to the minutes of this meeting; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the exception allowing GRF owned vehicles and 
equipment to park in numbered cul-de-sacs or in manor parking lots be removed 
from Section 7.6 of the Vehicle, Traffic and Parking Rules; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-14-44 adopted April 15, 2014 is hereby 
superseded and cancelled; 
  
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 4 of 4



this page intentionally left blank



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

DATE: August 6, 2018 

FOR:  Maintenance and Construction Committee 

SUBJECT: Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services  
  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the revised list of non-emergency chargeable maintenance services and the updated 
Resolution 03-18-XX (Attachments 1 and 2). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the April 2, 2018 M&C Committee meeting, staff proposed 18 additional chargeable 
maintenance services for the Committee to review.  Discussion ensued regarding other services 
the Committee felt should be added to the list.  Chair Moldow requested that the Committee 
members propose additional maintenance services for review and discussion at the following 
Committee meeting. 
 
At the May 7, 2018 M&C Committee meeting, Director Baum was the only member who suggested 
an additional chargeable service item.  Staff was then directed to add an estimated cost and time 
frame to each offered service as well as specify which items require materials to be supplied by the 
resident.   
 
At the July 2, 2018 M&C Committee meeting, the Committee wanted to increase the chargeable 
maintenance services to include additional interior components and services with member supplied 
parts.  Committee Members sent staff a revised list of services for review and consideration by the 
Committee at the August M&C meeting. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Mutual has historically planned for various levels of work as non-emergency maintenance 
chargeable services.  These chargeable service repairs are typically items of work for which the 
Mutual is not responsible; estimates for such repairs have been included in the annual budgeted 
service levels to account for the additional anticipated service hours.  
 
Chargeable services are provided at no cost to the Mutual.  Labor is prorated to the tenth of an 
hour and applied at the current billing rate for the relevant division; materials are passed through at 
cost; and a flat rate $25.00 service charge is applied.   
 
The level of staff hours budgeted for the current list of non-emergency maintenance chargeable 
services in 2018 are listed below. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 1 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services 
8/6/2018 
Page 2 
 
 
 

Maintenance 
Divisions 

Non-Emergency Staff Hours 
Budgeted 

Carpentry 124 
Electrical 300 
Plumbing 456 
Total Hours 880 

 
 
The estimated number of staff hours to complete the additional chargeable services is unknown at 
time. 
 
Residents may experience a longer wait time for scheduling non-emergency maintenance service 
requests, as emergency work and Mutual responsible repairs will take precedence over the items 
on this proposed non-emergency chargeable maintenance services list. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The addition of other non-emergency chargeable services may alter the staffing level required to 
accommodate the increase in requested work. Careful consideration must be given to staffing 
levels if the number of non-emergency maintenance chargeable services is increased, to ensure 
these hours, and potentially new positions, may be reflected in subsequent budget proposals.  
 
 
Prepared By:  Laurie Chavarria, Executive Assistant   
    Patrick Cleary, Maintenance Operations Manager 
    Mark Stal, Maintenance Services Manager 
  
    
Reviewed By:  Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance and Construction Director 
 
 
Attachment(s): 
 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Service List 
Attachment 2 – Revised Resolution 03-18-XX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 2 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services 
8/6/2018 
Page 3 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 - Proposed Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Service List 

 

 
Agenda Item # 13c 

Page 3 of 6



this page intentionally left blank



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services 
8/6/2018 
Page 4 

ATTACHMENT 1 - Revised Resolution 03-18-XX 
Schedule for Non-emergency Maintenance Chargeable Services 

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 03-15-156 which 
reestablished the delivery of non-emergency chargeable services and approved a schedule for non-
emergency maintenance chargeable services; and 

WHEREAS, the service call charge for all Maintenance chargeable services was increased to $25; and 

WHEREAS, the Board established a $25 permit processing fee for work that requires a City of Laguna 
Woods building permit if VMS pulls the permit; and 

WHEREAS the Board approved a $15 service charge when the Mutual Member (or representative) is 
not home for a scheduled appointment and fails to cancel in advance; and 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2015 the Board of Directors approved amending the schedule for non-
emergency maintenance chargeable services to include the replacement of manor low flow toilets; and 

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2017 the Board of Directors approved amending the schedule for non-
emergency maintenance chargeable services to include Water Heater Maintenance & Element 
replacement; and 

WHEREAS, additional non-emergency maintenance chargeable services have been added for 
electrical, carpentry, plumbing and facilities divisions as shown on the attached approved list. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, October 16, 2018, that the Board of Directors hereby approves 
the attached new schedule for non-emergency maintenance chargeable services; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the service call charge for all Maintenance chargeable services shall 
remain $25; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, the $25 permit processing fee for work that requires a City of Laguna Woods 
building permit if VMS pulls the permit shall remain in effect; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, the $15 service charge for when the Mutual Member (or representative) is not 
home for a scheduled appointment and fails to cancel in advance shall remain in effect; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, should the Mutual Member not be notified of a scheduled appointment change 
or the technician does not make the scheduled appointment, the subsequent scheduled appointment 
will be at no charge to the Mutual Member; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-17-48 adopted May 16, 2017 is hereby superseded and 
cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized on behalf 
of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution.  

Agenda Item # 13c
Page 4 of 6



August Initial Notification
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and 
seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the 
satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to 
the next available Board Meeting no less than 30-days from the postponement to comply with Civil 
Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 13c
Page 5 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
August 6, 2018 
 
 
ENDORSEMENT (to Third Board) 
 
Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services 
 
At the July 2, 2018 M&C Committee meeting, the Committee wanted to increase the chargeable 
maintenance services to include additional interior components and services with member supplied 
parts.  Committee Members sent staff a revised list of services for review and consideration by the 
Committee at the August M&C meeting. 
 
The Mutual has historically planned for various levels of work as non-emergency maintenance 
chargeable services.  These chargeable service repairs are typically items of work for which the 
Mutual is not responsible; estimates for such repairs have been included in the annual budgeted 
service levels to account for the additional anticipated service hours.  
 
Chargeable services are provided at no cost to the Mutual.  Labor is prorated to the tenth of an hour 
and applied at the current billing rate for the relevant division; materials are passed through at cost; 
and a flat rate $25.00 service charge is applied.   
 
Residents may experience a longer wait time for scheduling non-emergency maintenance service 
requests, as emergency work and Mutual responsible repairs will take precedence over the items on 
this proposed non-emergency chargeable maintenance services list. 
 
The addition of other non-emergency chargeable services may alter the staffing level required to 
accommodate the increase in requested work. Careful consideration must be given to staffing levels if 
the number of non-emergency maintenance chargeable services is increased, to ensure these hours, 
and potentially new positions, may be reflected in subsequent budget proposals. 
 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to recommend the Board approve the revised Non-
Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services as well as amend the current resolution. 
 

Agenda Item # 13c 
Page 6 of 6



this page intentionally left blank



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: 2019 Collection and Lien Enforcement Policy 
  
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the 2019 Collection and Lien Enforcement Policy. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The proposed 2019 Third Laguna Hills Mutual Collection and Lien Enforcement Policy outlines 
the procedures, policies, and practices employed by the Mutual in enforcing lien rights or other 
legal remedies against members who are in default in payment of assessments.  The policy 
statement is provided pursuant to the requirements of California Civil Code section 5310(a)(7) 
and will be distributed to members in November 2018 as part of the Annual Policy Statement. 
 

DISCUSSION 

Legal counsel has reviewed the existing Collection and Lien Enforcement Policy and 
determined that the policy as written complies with Civil Code requirements and reflects 
current practices for collection of Mutual delinquencies.  No changes other than the policy year 
are required. 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Betty Parker, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Reviewed By:  Siobhan Foster, Chief Operating Officer 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT1: 2019 Collection and Lien Enforcement Policy 
ATT2: Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 1 of 15



this page intentionally left blank



 

 
 

YEAR 2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY AND 
PROCEDURES FOR ASSESSMENT DELINQUENCIES 

PURPOSE STATEMENT 

The following is a statement of the specific procedures, policies and practices (“Policy Statement”) 
employed by Third Laguna Hills Mutual, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation (the 
“Mutual”) in enforcing lien rights or other legal remedies for default in payment of its assessments 
against its owners (“Members”).  This Policy Statement is provided pursuant to the requirements of 
California Civil Code section 5310(a)(7). 

The collection of delinquent assessments is of vital concern to all Members of the Mutual.  Such 
efforts ensure that all Members pay their fair share of the costs of services and facilities provided and 
maintained by the Mutual.  Members’ failure to pay assessments when due creates a cash-flow 
problem for the Mutual and causes those Members who make timely payment of their assessments to 
bear a disproportionate share of the community’s financial obligations.  Special assessments must be 
received in a timely fashion in order to finance the needs for which said special assessments are 
imposed.   

Accordingly, in order to reduce the amount and duration of delinquencies and to encourage the prompt 
and full payment of all assessments, the Mutual has been vested with certain enforcement rights and 
remedies which are in addition to those which exist generally for creditors.  These rights and remedies 
are described in this Policy Statement. 

WE SINCERELY TRUST THAT ALL MEMBERS, IN THE SPIRIT OF COOPERATION AND 
RECOGNIZING THEIR LEGAL OBLIGATIONS, WILL MAKE TIMELY PAYMENTS AND 
AVOID THE IMPOSITION OF LATE CHARGES, POSSIBLE RESULTANT LEGAL ACTION, 
AND THE LEGAL OBLIGATION TO REIMBURSE THE MUTUAL FOR THE COSTS OF SUCH 
LEGAL ACTION.  IT IS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF YOU AND EVERY OTHER MEMBER OF 
THE MUTUAL FOR EACH OF YOU TO MAKE YOUR MONTHLY PAYMENTS ON TIME. 

REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE MUTUAL RECORDS A LIEN ON YOUR PROPERTY 
DURING THE COLLECTION OF PAST-DUE ASSESSMENTS, ALL MEMBERS HAVE A 
PERSONAL AND ONGOING OBLIGATION TO PAY ASSESSMENTS AND CHARGES. 

BASIC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Delinquency reports are made monthly by the Mutual’s managing agent to the Board of the Mutual, 
identifying the delinquent Member, and the amount and length of time the assessments have been in 
arrears.  The policies and practices outlined in this Policy Statement shall remain in effect until such 
time as they may be changed, modified, or amended by a duly adopted resolution of the Mutual’s 
Board of Directors, or unless the applicable statutory scheme changes, in which event, this Policy 
Statement shall be construed so as to be consistent with any newly adopted statutes or court decisions.  

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 2 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 2 
 

 

  

In accordance with the Mutual’s governing documents (including, without limitation, the Articles of 
Incorporation, the Bylaws, the recorded CC&Rs, rules and regulations and the California Civil Code), 
to ensure the prompt payment of monthly assessments, the Mutual employs the following collection 
and lien enforcement procedures.  Also following, pursuant to Paragraphs 4, 6, and 7 are Third 
collection policies and procedures for the collection of fines, fees, and chargeable services charged 
against Members pursuant to the Governing Documents and current law: 

1. Assessment Due Date 

Regular assessments (“Carrying Charges” as defined in Article 1, Section 8 of the CC&Rs) are due and 
payable to the Mutual, in advance, in equal monthly installments, on the first day of each month.  It is 
each Member’s responsibility to pay assessments in full each month regardless of whether a billing 
statement is received.  Special assessments shall be due and payable on the due date specified by the 
Board of Directors in the notice imposing the special assessment or in the ballot presenting the special 
assessment to the Members for approval.  In no event shall a special assessment be due and payable 
earlier than thirty (30) days after the special assessment is duly imposed.   

2. Reminder Notice 

If the current monthly assessment is not received by the Mutual on or before the close of business on 
the sixteenth (16th) day of the month (or if a special assessment is not received by the Mutual on or 
before the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day after it is due), a Reminder Notice is sent to the 
Member.   

PLEASE NOTE THAT TO BE CONSIDERED TIMELY, THE PAYMENT MUST BE RECEIVED 
BY THE MUTUAL WITHIN THIS FIFTEEN (15) DAY GRACE PERIOD.  SIMPLY PLACING 
THE PAYMENT IN THE MAIL BEFORE THE GRACE PERIOD EXPIRES IS NOT SUFFICIENT.   

3. Administrative Collection Fee 

It is the policy of the Mutual not to routinely waive any duly imposed late charges, interest, or actually 
incurred “Costs of Collection.”  “Costs of Collection” as used in this Policy Statement include, without 
limitation, an administrative collection fee, currently in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) 
(the “Administrative Collection Fee”), which is charged by the Mutual’s managing agent to cover 
staff’s costs to prepare the files for delivery to the Mutual’s legal counsel in order to carry out legal 
actions authorized hereunder, as well as direct costs incurred in recording and/or mailing documents 
attendant to this legal process.   

This Administrative Collection Fee may be increased by majority vote of the Mutual’s Board, and may 
be collected by the Mutual’s legal counsel on its behalf, and remitted to the Mutual’s managing agent, 
or may be directly collected by the Mutual’s managing agent.   

4. Late Charge 

IT IS THE MEMBER’S RESPONSIBILITY TO ALLOW AMPLE TIME TO DROP OFF OR MAIL 
ALL PAYMENTS SO THAT THEY ARE RECEIVED BEFORE THE DELINQUENCY DATE.  All 
notices or invoices for assessments will be sent to Members by first-class mail addressed to the 
Member at his or her address as shown on the books and records of the Mutual.  However, it is the 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 3 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 3 
 

 

  

Member’s responsibility to be aware of the assessment payment due dates and to advise the Mutual of 
any changes in the Member’s mailing address, pursuant to Civil Code section 4041.   

A late payment charge for a delinquent assessment will be assessed in the amount of Sixty Dollars 
($60.00) and will be imposed on any assessment payment that is more than fifteen (15) days in arrears.  
Further, both state law and the Mutual’s governing documents provide for interest on the delinquent 
assessment and the late charge, and accordingly interest may be imposed thirty (30) days after the 
assessment is due, at an annual percentage rate of ten percent (10%) as allowed by Civil Code section 
5650.  Such interest may be imposed and collected per the foregoing sentence regardless of whether 
the Member’s delinquent account is referred to the Mutual’s legal counsel for further handling. Non-
assessment fines, fees, and chargeable services are also subject to a late fee and interest, in an amount 
determined by Board resolution. 

  5. Demand Letter (aka Pre-Lien Letter) 

If full payment of the delinquent amount is not received by the close of business on the day which is 
fifteen (15) days after the date of the Reminder Notice, a Demand Letter (also known as a Pre-Lien 
Letter under California Civil Code sections 5650-5660) will be sent to the Member by Certified Mail.  
The Mutual, through its managing agent, will also attempt to contact the Member by telephone to 
remind the Member of the delinquency and determine when payment will be made.  However, no 
assurances can be given that the Mutual will in fact reach the Member by telephone, and the Member 
is responsible to pay off the delinquency whether or not a telephone reminder is actually received by 
the Member. 

6. Alternate Means to Collect Delinquent Sums 

If full payment of the delinquent amount (such as a duly levied and imposed assessment, fine, fee, or 
chargeable service including associated late fees and interest) is not received by the close of business 
on the thirtieth (30th) day after the date of the Demand Letter, the Mutual may, at its option, and based 
on the circumstances of the delinquency, including but not limited to, the total delinquent amount 
owing and the Member’s payment history, undertake to collect the delinquency by: (1) suspending a 
Member’s right (and that of the Resident or Tenant of that Member’s Condominium Unit) to use 
Mutual or GRF facilities; (2) termination of the delinquent Member’s Membership in the Mutual as a 
result of any foreclosure, (3) legal actions, discussed further below, or (4) other means permitted by 
law. 

The Mutual may, after following appropriate procedures prescribed by law and the Mutual’s governing 
documents, suspend a delinquent Member’s right to vote on matters as to which the Member would 
otherwise be entitled to vote (based on applicable law and/or the Mutual’s governing documents), or to 
use facilities or receive services provided by the Mutual, or both, until the delinquency is paid in full, 
including interest, a late charge, and/or the Administrative Collection Fee, as may have been imposed 
or incurred in a particular instance.  Failure to pay the assessments or failure to pay interest, a late fee, 
and/or the Administrative Collection Fee may also result in suspension of Membership in and the 
ability to use the facilities or services provided by the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods or by 
this Mutual. 

The Mutual may also take various legal actions to enforce the collection of delinquencies.  THESE 
ACTIONS MAY BE TAKEN SEPARATELY OR CONCURRENTLY.   

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 4 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 4 
 

 

  

7. Small Claims Court 

A civil action in small claims court may be filed, with a management company representative or 
bookkeeper appearing and participating on behalf of the Mutual.   

PLEASE NOTE THAT A SMALL CLAIMS COURT ACTION MAY BE PURSUED BASED ON A 
BOARD RESOLUTION EITHER BEFORE OR AFTER RECORDING A NOTICE OF 
DELINQUENT ASSESSMENT, AND/OR AFTER A WRITE-OFF. 

The amount that may be recovered in small claims court may not exceed the jurisdictional limits of the 
small claims court, and shall be the sum of the following:  (a) the amount owed as of the date of filing 
of the complaint in the small claims court proceeding; and (b) in the discretion of the court, an 
additional amount equal to the amount owed for the period from the date the complaint is filed until 
satisfaction of the judgment, which total amount may include accruing unpaid assessments, fines, fees, 
or chargeable services, and any reasonable late charges, fees and Costs of Collection (which costs 
shall, as stated above, include, without limitation, the Administrative Collection Fee), attorney’s fees 
and interest, all up to the jurisdictional limits of the small claims court. 

Successive small claims court actions may be pursued, consistently with applicable laws, until the 
entire amount of the delinquency is recovered. 

8. Lien 

The Mutual may secure the delinquency by recording a lien on the owner’s separate interest with the 
county recorder of the county in which the separate interest is located . The debt shall be a lien on the 
owner’s separate interest in the development from and after the time the Mutual records a notice of 
delinquent assessment, which shall state: the amount of the assessment and other sums imposed in 
accordance with subdivision (b) of Section 5650; a legal description of the owner’s separate interest in 
the common interest development against which the assessment and other sums are levied; and the 
name of the record owner of the separate interest in the common interest development against which 
the lien is imposed. 

The itemized statement of the charges owed by the owner described in subdivision (b) of Section 5660 
shall be recorded together with the notice of delinquent assessment. In order for the lien to be enforced 
by nonjudicial foreclosure as provided in Sections 5700 to 5710, inclusive, the notice of delinquent 
assessment shall state the name and address of the trustee authorized by the association to enforce the 
lien by sale. The notice of delinquent assessment shall be signed by the person designated in the 
declaration or by the association for that purpose, or if no one is designated, by the president of the 
association. A copy of the recorded notice of delinquent assessment shall be mailed by certified mail to 
every person whose name is shown as an owner of the separate interest in the association’s records, 
and the notice shall be mailed no later than ten (10) calendar days after recordation. 

9. Foreclosure/ADR 

After the expiration of thirty (30) days following the recording of a lien created pursuant to Section 
5675, the lien may be enforced in any manner permitted by law. Once the amount of delinquent 
assessments (not including any late charges, fees, attorney’s fees, interest, or Costs of Collection), 
exceeds One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($1,800), or any unpaid assessments are more than 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 5 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 5 
 

 

  

twelve (12) months delinquent, then, subject to specified conditions, the Mutual may initiate 
foreclosure proceedings to collect the amounts owed.   

These conditions include that, prior to initiating a foreclosure, the Mutual shall offer the Member, and 
if so requested by the Member, the Mutual must participate in dispute resolution pursuant to the 
Mutual’s “meet and confer” program, or alternative dispute resolution (“ADR”).  THE DECISION TO 
PURSUE DISPUTE RESOLUTION OR A PARTICULAR TYPE OF ADR SHALL BE THE 
CHOICE OF THE MEMBER, EXCEPT THAT BINDING ARBITRATION SHALL NOT BE 
AVAILABLE IF THE MUTUAL INTENDS TO INITIATE A JUDICIAL FORECLOSURE.   

10. Board Decision to Initiate Foreclosure 

Another condition is that the decision to initiate foreclosure of a lien for delinquent assessments that 
has been validly recorded shall be made only by the Board, and may not be delegated to an agent of the 
Mutual.  The Board shall approve the decision by a majority vote of the Board in an executive session.  
The vote must be recorded in the minutes of the next meeting of the Board open to all Members; 
however, the confidentiality of the delinquent Member shall be maintained by identifying the matter in 
the minutes only by the Parcel Number, and not by the name of the delinquent Member or Members.  
A Board vote to approve foreclosure of a lien shall take place at least thirty (30) days prior to any 
public sale or judicial foreclosure. 

The Board must provide notice by personal service to an owner of a separate interest or their legal 
representative, if the Board votes to foreclose.  For a non-occupying owner, the Board must provide 
written notice by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at the most current address shown on the books of 
the Mutual.  In the absence of written notification by a non-occupying owner to the Mutual, the 
address of the owner’s separate interest may be treated as the owner’s mailing address. 

11. Non-Judicial Foreclosure/Right of Redemption 

A non-judicial foreclosure by the Mutual to collect upon a debt for delinquent assessments is subject to 
a statutory right of redemption.  The redemption period within which the separate interest may be 
redeemed from a foreclosure sale ends ninety (90) days after the sale, per California Civil Code section 
5715.  

If a foreclosure action is prosecuted to judgment and the judgment is in favor of the Mutual, assets of 
the Member may be seized or a lien may be placed on such assets to satisfy the judgment.  Pursuant to 
the provisions of the Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act, applicable regulations, and the 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs), the delinquent amount, as well as late payment 
penalties for the delinquent assessments and/or interest charges and/or charges for Costs of Collection 
that are incurred by the Mutual or its managing agent acting on behalf of the Mutual in its efforts to 
collect delinquent assessments (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees, title company and 
foreclosure service company charges, charges imposed to defray the cost of preparing and mailing 
demand letters (such as the Administrative Collection Fee), recording costs and costs associated with 
small claims court actions) may be enforced as a lien against the Member’s  Manor. 

Moreover, pursuant to the Davis-Stirling Common Interest Development Act, monetary penalties that 
have been imposed by the Mutual as a means of reimbursing the Mutual for costs incurred by the 
Mutual in the repair of damage to common areas and/or community facilities for which a Member or a 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 6 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 6 
 

 

  

Member’s guests or tenants were responsible may also be enforced as a lien against the Member’s 
Manor. 

12. Prerequisites to Recording a Lien:  Offer of ADR and Thirty (30) Day Pre-Lien Notice to the 
Delinquent Member 

Before a Notice of Delinquent Assessment can be recorded in the chain of title to the manor of a 
delinquent Member, the Mutual must offer the Member, and if so requested by the Member, the 
Mutual must participate in dispute resolution pursuant to the Mutual’s “meet and confer” program (per 
the requirements set forth in Article 2 commencing with section 5900 of Chapter 10) or ADR as set 
forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 5925 of Chapter 10), both in the California Civil Code. 

Any choice by a Member to pursue any kind of ADR must be made by the Member’s delivery of 
written notice of such choice to the Mutual’s managing agent within thirty (30) days of any event 
which triggers a Member’s right to pursue ADR, whether it is before a Notice of Delinquent 
Assessment can be recorded (i.e., upon receipt of the certified Pre-Lien Notice), or prior to initiating a 
foreclosure action, or in any other situation for which the Davis-Stirling Common Interest 
Development Act or the Mutual’s governing documents authorize or allow a Member to choose ADR.  

THE DECISION TO PURSUE DISPUTE RESOLUTION OR A PARTICULAR TYPE OF ADR 
SHALL BE THE CHOICE OF THE OWNER.  However, binding arbitration is not available if the 
Mutual intends to initiate a judicial foreclosure.   

13. Pre-Lien Notice 

If the Member elects not to proceed with dispute resolution or any type of ADR, then the Mutual must 
send the Member a certified notice providing information regarding the sums claimed as being 
delinquent (“Pre-Lien Notice”).  No lien can be recorded until thirty (30) days after this Pre-Lien 
Notice has been given.   

This certified Pre-Lien Notice from the Mutual must include the following information (per California 
Civil Code Section 5660): 

(a) A general description of the collection and lien enforcement procedures of the 
association and the method of calculation of the amount, a statement that the owner of 
the separate interest has the right to inspect the association records pursuant to Section 
5205, and the following statement in 14-point boldface type, if printed, or in capital 
letters, if typed;                                                         

“IMPORTANT NOTICE: IF YOUR SEPARATE INTEREST IS PLACED IN 
FORECLOSURE BECAUSE YOU ARE BEHIND IN YOUR ASSESSMENTS, IT 
MAY BE SOLD WITHOUT COURT ACTION” 

(b) An itemized statement of the charges owed by the owner, including items on the 
statement which indicate the amount of any delinquent assessments, the fees and 
reasonable costs of collection, reasonable attorney’s fees, any late charges, and interest, 
if any ; 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 7 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 7 
 

 

  

(c) A statement that the owner shall not be liable to pay the charges, interest, and costs of 
collection, if it is determined the assessment was paid on time to the association; 

(d) The right to request a meeting with the board as provided in Section 5665; 

(e) The right to dispute the assessment debt by submitting a written request for dispute 
resolution to the association pursuant to the association’s “meet and confer” program 
required in Article 2 (commencing with Section 5900) of Chapter 10;  

(f) The right to request alternative dispute resolution with a neutral third party pursuant to 
Article 3 (commencing with Section 5925) of Chapter 10 before the association may 
initiate foreclosure against the owner’s separate interest, except that binding arbitration 
shall not be available if the association intends to initiate a judicial foreclosure; 

14. Member’s Right to Request a Meeting with the Board, or Dispute Resolution or ADR. 

Upon receipt of the certified Pre-Lien Notice described above, the noticed Member has several 
possible courses of action that can be taken at this point in the collection process, such as: 

(a) The Member has the right to dispute the assessment debt by submitting a written request 
for dispute resolution to the Mutual pursuant to the Mutual’s “meet and confer” 
program, which is required by Civil Code sections 5900-5920; 

(b) The Member may exercise his or her right to participate in alternative dispute resolution 
with a neutral third party under Civil Code sections 5925-5965 before the Mutual may 
initiate foreclosure against the owner’s separate interest, except that binding arbitration 
shall not be available if the Mutual intends to initiate a judicial foreclosure; 

(c) The Member has a right to submit a written request to meet with the Board of Directors 
to discuss a payment plan for the delinquent assessment, as long as the request for a 
meeting is made within fifteen (15) days following the postmark on the Mutual’s Pre-
Lien Notice to the Member.  That meeting must take place within forty-five (45) days 
(calculated from the postmark on the Member’s request) and must be conducted in 
executive session. When a Member has made a timely request for a meeting to discuss a 
payment plan, the Mutual must provide the requesting Member with the Mutual’s 
standards for payment plans, if any standards have been adopted.  There is no statutory 
authorization for the Board to delegate this meeting obligation to a property manager, 
but the Board may designate a committee of one or more directors to meet with the 
Member if there is no regularly scheduled Board meeting that will occur within forty-
five (45) days of the Member’s request. 

15. Payment Plan Requests 

Any Member who is unable to timely pay regular or special assessments is entitled to make a written 
request for a payment plan to the Mutual’s Board.  A Member may also request to meet with the Board 
in executive session to discuss a payment plan if the payment plan request is mailed within fifteen (15) 
days of the postmark date of the Demand Letter (i.e., the Pre-Lien Letter).  The Mutual’s Board will 
consider payment plan requests on a case-by-case basis, and is under no obligation to grant payment 
plan requests.  Payment plans may incorporate any assessments that accrue during the payment plan 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 8 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 8 
 

 

  

period.  Payment plans may not impede the Mutual’s ability to record a lien on the Member’s separate 
interest to secure payment of delinquent assessments.  Additional late fees shall not accrue during the 
payment plan period if the Member is in compliance with the terms of the payment plan.  In the event 
of a default on any payment plan, the Mutual may resume its efforts to collect the delinquent 
assessments from the time prior to entering into the payment plan.  The Mutual reserves the right to 
impose reasonable conditions on any approvals for a payment plan and request that the delinquent 
Member provide disclosure of certain identifying information and other assets that may be used as 
additional security for the debt owed. 

Also, Civil Code section 5965 requires the Mutual to include the following statement in this Policy 
Statement: 

“Failure of a member of the association to comply with the alternative dispute 
resolution requirements of Section 5930 of the Civil Code may result in the loss of the 
member’s right to sue the association or another member of the association regarding 
enforcement of the governing documents or the applicable law.” 

If any “meet and confer” session or ADR is engaged in by and between the Member and the Mutual 
(or any neutral third parties, as the case may be), and these efforts do not result in a payment plan, 
then, assuming the new statutory minimum as to the delinquent amount or duration of the delinquency 
had been met, a proceeding may be commenced to foreclose the lien against the Member’s Manor and 
sell the Member’s Manor at a private sale or by a judicial sale.  If this occurs, the Member may lose his 
or her Manor. 

16. Application of Payments 

Additionally, in accordance with state law, payments received on delinquent assessments shall be 
applied to the Member’s account in the following order of priority: first, to the principal owed; then to 
accrued interest and late charges; then to attorney’s fees; then to title company and foreclosure service 
company charges and other Costs of Collection.  Payments on account of principal shall be applied in 
reverse order so that the oldest arrearages are retired first.  Interest shall continue to accrue on unpaid 
balances of principal, and other costs and charges imposed in accordance with Civil Code section 
5655. 

The Mutual is prohibited from recording a lien or initiating a foreclosure action without participating 
in dispute resolution or ADR procedures if so requested by the Member.  If it is determined that an 
association has recorded a lien for a delinquent assessment in error, the association shall promptly 
reverse all late charges, fees, interest, attorney’s fees, costs of collection, costs imposed for the notice 
prescribed in Section 5660, and costs of recordation and release of the lien authorized under 
subdivision (b) of Section 5720, and pay all costs related to any related dispute resolution or alternative 
dispute resolution. 

17. Secondary Address 

Members have a right and obligation to identify in writing to the Mutual a secondary address for 
purposes of collection notices delivered pursuant to the Mutual’s Annual Policy Statement, and upon 
receipt of a proper written request from a Member identifying a secondary address that complies with 
Civil Code section 4041 and the Governing Documents, the Mutual must send additional notices to this 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 9 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 9 
 

 

  

secondary address.  Pursuant to section 4041, Members must keep the Mutual updated with respect to 
any mailing or secondary address to which notices from the Mutual are to be delivered.  If Members 
fail to provide such information to the Mutual, the onsite manor shall be deemed to be the address to 
which notices are to be delivered. 

18. No Right of Offset 

There is no right of offset.  This means that a Member may not withhold assessments owed to the 
Mutual on the alleged grounds that the Member would be entitled to recover money or damages from 
the Mutual based on some other obligation or some claim of another obligation. 

19. Returned Checks 

The Mutual may charge the Member a twenty-five dollar ($25.00) fee for the first check tendered to 
the Mutual that is returned unpaid by the Member’s bank, and thereafter, the Mutual may charge a 
thirty-five dollar ($35.00) fee for any subsequent check that is returned based on insufficient funds.  If 
a Member’s check cannot be negotiated for any reason, then the Mutual may also seek to recover 
damages of the greater of (a) one hundred dollars ($100.00); or (b) three (3) times the amount of the 
check up to fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00) in accordance with California Civil Code section 1719. 

20. Charges and Fees Subject to Change 

All charges and fees set forth in this Policy Statement are subject to change upon thirty (30) days prior 
written notice. 

21. Overnight Payments 

The mailing address for overnight payment of assessments is:  Third Laguna Hills Mutual, Attn: 
Assessment Payments, 24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, CA 92637. 

22. Rights Reserved by Mutual 

Although the matters set forth above summarize the policies and practices ordinarily employed to 
collect delinquent monthly assessments, the Mutual reserves the right to employ other or additional 
policies and practices as may be necessary or appropriate when the uniqueness of the circumstances or 
habitualness of the delinquency so requires. 

23. Attachments 

The Notice of Assessments and Foreclosure required by Civil Code Section 5730 is contained in 
Attachment "A" to this Policy. 

The disclosures required by the State Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the Federal Fair 
Debt Collection Practices Act are contained in Attachment “B” to this Policy. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 10 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 10 
 

 

  

ATTACHMENT "A"  
NOTICE OF  

ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE  
 

The following notice is provided pursuant to Civil Code Section 5730 
 
 

NOTICE ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE 
 
This notice outlines some of the rights and responsibilities of owners of property in common interest 
developments and the associations that manage them. Please refer to the sections of the Civil Code 
indicated for further information. A portion of the information in this notice applies only to liens 
recorded on or after January 1, 2003. You may wish to consult a lawyer if you dispute an assessment. 
 

ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE 
 
Assessments become delinquent 15 days after they are due, unless the governing documents provide 
for a longer time. The failure to pay association assessments may result in the loss of an owner’s 
property through foreclosure. Foreclosure may occur either as a result of a court action, known as 
judicial foreclosure, or without court action, often referred to as nonjudicial foreclosure. For liens 
recorded on and after January 1, 2006, an association may not use judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure to 
enforce that lien if the amount of the delinquent assessments or dues, exclusive of any accelerated 
assessments, late charges, fees, attorney’s fees, interest, and costs of collection, is less than one 
thousand eight hundred dollars ($1,800). For delinquent assessments or dues in excess of one thousand 
eight hundred dollars ($1,800) or more than 12 months delinquent, an association may use judicial or 
nonjudicial foreclosure subject to the conditions set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 5700) 
of Chapter 8 of Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. When using judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure, 
the association records a lien on the owner’s property. The owner’s property may be sold to satisfy the 
lien if the amounts secured by the lien are not paid. (Sections 5700 through 5720 of the Civil Code, 
inclusive) 
 
In a judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure, the association may recover assessments, reasonable costs of 
collection, reasonable attorney’s fees, late charges, and interest. The association may not use 
nonjudicial foreclosure to collect fines or penalties, except for costs to repair common area damaged 
by a member or a member’s guests, if the governing documents provide for this. (Section 5725 of the 
Civil Code) 
 
The association must comply with the requirements of Article 2 (commencing with Section 5650) of 
Chapter 8 of Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code when collecting delinquent assessments. If the 
association fails to follow these requirements, it may not record a lien on the owner’s property until it 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 11 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 11 
 

 

  

has satisfied those requirements. Any additional costs that result from satisfying the requirements are 
the responsibility of the association. (Section 5675 of the Civil Code) 
 
At least 30 days prior to recording a lien on an owner’s separate interest, the association must provide 
the owner of record with certain documents by certified mail, including a description of its collection 
and lien enforcement procedures and the method of calculating the amount. It must also provide an 
itemized statement of the charges owed by the owner. An owner has a right to review the association’s 
records to verify the debt. (Section 5660 of the Civil Code) 
 
If a lien is recorded against an owner’s property in error, the person who recorded the lien is required 
to record a lien release within 21 days, and to provide an owner certain documents in this regard. 
(Section 5685 of the Civil Code) 
 
The collection practices of the association may be governed by state and federal laws regarding fair 
debt collection. Penalties can be imposed for debt collection practices that violate these laws. 
 

PAYMENTS 
 
When an owner makes a payment, the owner may request a receipt, and the association is required to 
provide it. On the receipt, the association must indicate the date of payment and the person who 
received it. The association must inform owners of a mailing address for overnight payments. (Section 
5655 of the Civil Code) 
 
An owner may, but is not obligated to, pay under protest any disputed charge or sum levied by the 
association, including, but not limited to, an assessment, fine, penalty, late fee, collection cost, or 
monetary penalty imposed as a disciplinary measure, and by so doing, specifically reserve the right to 
contest the disputed charge or sum in court or otherwise. 
 
An owner may dispute an assessment debt by submitting a written request for dispute resolution to the 
association as set forth in Article 2 (commencing with Section 5900) of Chapter 10 of Part 5 of 
Division 4 of the Civil Code. In addition, an association may not initiate a foreclosure without 
participating in alternative dispute resolution with a neutral third party as set forth in Article 3 
(commencing with Section 5925) of Chapter 10 of Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, if so 
requested by the owner. Binding arbitration shall not be available if the association intends to initiate a 
judicial foreclosure. 
 
An owner is not liable for charges, interest, and costs of collection, if it is established that the 
assessment was paid properly on time. (Section 5685 of the Civil Code) 
 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 12 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 12 
 

 

  

MEETINGS AND PAYMENT PLANS 
 
An owner of a separate interest that is not a time-share interest may request the association to consider 
a payment plan to satisfy a delinquent assessment. The association must inform owners of the 
standards for payment plans, if any exists.  (Section 5665 of the Civil Code) 
 
The board must meet with an owner who makes a proper written request for a meeting to discuss a 
payment plan when the owner has received notice of a delinquent assessment.  These payment plans 
must conform with the payment plan standards of the association, if they exist. (Section 5665 of the 
Civil Code) 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 13 of 15



2019 COLLECTION AND LIEN ENFORCEMENT POLICY    
Page 13 
 

 

  

 ATTACHMENT "B"  
 

The following Disclosure is made pursuant to Civil Code Section 1812.700-1812.703 
 

“The State Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices 
Act require that, except under unusual circumstances, collectors may not contact you before 8 a.m. or 
after 9 p.m. They may not harass you by using threats of violence or arrest or by using obscene 
language.  Collectors may not use false or misleading statements or call you at work if they know or 
have reason to know that you may not receive personal calls at work.  For the most part, collectors may 
not tell another person, other than your attorney or spouse, about your debt.  Collectors may contact 
another person to confirm your location or enforce a judgment.  For more information about debt 
collection activities, you may contact the Federal Trade Commission at 1-877-FTC-HELP or 
www.ftc.gov.” 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item # 13d 
Page 14 of 15



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-18-xx 

2019 Collection & Lien Enforcement Policy 

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Civil Code, Third Laguna Hills 
Mutual maintains a collection and lien enforcement policy that outlines the 
procedures, policies and practices employed by the Mutual in enforcing 
lien rights or other legal remedies for default in payment of assessments; 
and 

WHEREAS, legal counsel has reviewed the existing Collection and Lien 
Enforcement Policy and determined that the policy as written complies 
with Civil Code requirements and reflects current practices for collection of 
Mutual delinquencies. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, August 21, 2018, that the Board 
of Directors hereby adopts the 2019 Third Laguna Hills Mutual Collection 
and Lien Enforcement Policy as attached to the official minutes of this 
meeting; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, the policy statement is provided pursuant to the 
requirements of California Civil Code section 5310(a)(7) and will be 
distributed to members in November 2018 as part of the Annual Policy 
Statement. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this 
resolution.  

Agenda Item # 13d
Page 15 of 15



this page intentionally left blank



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: August 21, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors  

SUBJECT: Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve disciplinary violations matrix. 
 
BACKGROUND 

On July 20, 2004, the Board of Directors established a member-discipline process for the 
purposes of holding disciplinary hearings in a timely manner and ensuring progressive 
discipline (Attachment 1, Resolution 03-04-12). The Board of Directors is obligated to evaluate 
and impose if appropriate, member-discipline under its Bylaws and the California Civil Code.   
 
The member-discipline process is coordinated by the Compliance Division.  Upon notice of an 
alleged violation, Staff investigates and should Staff identify objective evidence of a violation 
by a Member or their guests, Staff will send a courtesy notice to the offending party describing 
the allegation(s) and the disciplinary action that may ensure if not corrected.   Staff will monitor 
the situation and if compliance is not evident, Staff will send a final notice requesting 
compliance.  Additionally, the matter is scheduled for a disciplinary hearing with the Board of 
Directors to determine if member-discipline is merited.  If the alleged violation has been 
resolved, no further action is required. 
 
If a disciplinary hearing is merited, Staff will proceed with noticing the Member for a hearing.  
During a Member Disciplinary Hearing the Member has the right to meet before the Board of 
Directors in executive session.  If the Board finds the Member to be in violation of the 
governing documents, the Board may impose a fine based on the Monetary Fee Schedule, 
suspend Member privileges, and/or consider legal action.   
 
On April 24, 2018, the Executive Hearings Committee requested Staff develop a 
recommendation for the next Third Mutual Executive Hearings Committee regarding 
compliance issues that should be immediately scheduled for a disciplinary hearing (“fineable”) 
as opposed to be given a courtesy notice (“warn-able”).  Examples that were given as possible 
“fineable” items were illegal occupancy and construction work without a permit.  Clutter on a 
patio was one example of a “warn-able” item that would receive a courtesy notice.   
 
On May 22, 2018, the Executive Hearings Committee discussed the matter and requested that 
it be brought to the Residency Policies and Compliance Task Force for further discussion.  
 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 1 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
August 21, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
The Executive Hearings Committee meets for four hours on a monthly basis for damage 
restoration and disciplinary hearings.  The Committee averages five damage restoration 
hearings and nine disciplinary hearings per monthly meeting.   
 
On July 31, 2018, the Residency Policy & Compliance Task Force reviewed and discussed the 
matter and made some changes.   
 
On August 7, 2018, the Finance Committee reviewed and discussed the disciplinary violations 
matrix.  The Committee made changes for clarification purposes and requested that the 
disciplinary process be included with the matrix.   
 
DISCUSSION 

On average, the member-disciplinary process takes approximately 45 days from when a 
complaint is reported to when a disciplinary hearing is scheduled.  Additionally, at present time, 
approximately 80% of disciplinary cases are resolved with the courtesy notice.  The following 
categories currently result in an immediate hearing: violations involving hazardous materials, 
dog bite, major manor maintenance/repair, and major nuisance violations.   
 
In preparation for this analysis, Staff and legal counsel reviewed the Davis-Stirling Act and 
determined the Act does not require a warning vs. a fine for a governing document violation.  
Any such restriction would have to come from the governing documents.   
 
Review of the Bylaws and Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions (CC&Rs) revealed nothing that speaks or that would prevent this.  Examination of 
various applicable rules, including a number of different rules/resolutions/policies regarding 
fines and potential disciplinary action for various types of violations generally identified nothing 
that would require a warning before a fine can be levied, following a noticed hearing before the 
Board as required by statute/the governing documents, but there are a few instances where it 
appears that a warning is apparently required. 
 
For violations of not displaying a handicapped parking placard, the first offense is to be 
suspended (i.e., no fine), if the placard and handicapped certificate are brought to the Security 
Department (Resolution M3-96-20). 
 
The Laguna Woods Village Traffic Rules and Regulations (Resolution 03-14-44) states in 
Section 3.3.2 that violators will be given the option to attend “Traffic School” rather than paying 
a fine once in any given three year period. 
 
The Laguna Woods Village Traffic Rules and Regulations also defer to the fine schedule of the 
Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) for traffic violations.  Legal counsel has not reviewed this 
schedule, but as long as there is nothing that requires a warning, which does not appear to be 
the case based on the context in the Traffic Rules and Regulations, there should not be any 
other mandatory warning type violations.   
 
Other than those limited examples, Staff and counsel see no issue in terms of setting up 
guidelines for “warn-able” offenses vs. immediately “fineable offenses.”  The underlying 
principle that similar offenses should be treated similarly (i.e., no disparate treatment) should 
always be kept in mind whenever the method of discipline has elements of discretion.  The 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 2 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
August 21, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 
Board should avoid potential liability/claims from residents as to disparate treatment or claims 
that they are being targeted. 
 
The proposed guidelines (Attachment 2) outline the compliance issues that should be 
immediately scheduled for a disciplinary hearing (“fineable”) as opposed to be given a courtesy 
notice (“warn-able”). Items that most adversely impact quality of life and/or public health and 
safety are categorized as immediately “fine-able” offenses.    
 
Should the proposed guidelines be approved by the Board, Staff anticipates that additional 
Committee time will be required to accommodate the increase of disciplinary hearings. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Staff anticipates that an increase of fines will result from the additional disciplinary hearings. 
 
Prepared By:  Francis Rangel, Operations Manager 
     
Reviewed By:  Tim Moy, Chief of Security 
    Siobhan Foster, Chief Operating Officer 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Member Disciplinary Process 
Attachment 2: Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
  

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 3 of 6



this page intentionally left blank



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
August 21, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

Attachment 1: Member Disciplinary Process 
 

MEMBER DISCIPLINARY PROCESS 
 
The following notice is provided pursuant to Civil Code Section 5850 
 
Resolution 03-04-12, adopted July 20, 2004 by the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (Third) Board of 
Directors established a member-discipline process for the purposes of holding disciplinary 
hearings in a timely manner and ensuring progressive discipline. The Board of Directors is 
obligated to evaluate and impose if appropriate, member-discipline under its Bylaws and Civil 
Code Section 5850.   
 
Each Member of Third is obligated to comply with the rules, terms, and conditions as set forth 
in the Mutual’s governing documents.  Following is the disciplinary process adopted by the 
Board of Directors when violations occur: 
 

 Upon notice of alleged violation, Staff investigates and files an Incident Report (IR) 
and/or Notice of Clutter Violation (NOV). 
 

 By way of the initial investigation, should Staff identify objective evidence of a violation 
by a Member or their guests, Staff will send a letter to the offending party describing the 
allegation(s) and the disciplinary action that may ensue if not corrected. 
 

 Staff will monitor the situation and if compliance with the request is not evident, an 
additional IR and/or NOV is filed, and a letter is sent to the offending party advising that 
a Disciplinary Hearing may be scheduled with the Board of Directors to determine if 
member-discipline is merited.  If the alleged violation has been resolved, no further 
action is required. 
 

 If a Disciplinary Hearing is merited, Staff will proceed with noticing the Member for a 
hearing.  Hearings are noticed based on Section 4.5, Discipline or Suspension, of the 
Bylaws. 
 

 During a Member Disciplinary Hearing the Member has the right to meet before the 
Board of Directors in executive session.  If the Board finds the Member to be in violation 
of the governing documents, the Board may impose a fine based on the Monetary Fee 
Schedule, suspend Member privileges, and/or consider legal action.   

 
Violations include but are not limited to:  abandoned/inoperable vehicles, unauthorized 
alterations, animal nuisance, breezeway clutter, carport clutter, common are clutter, interior 
clutter, patio clutter, illegal occupancy, nuisance, non-payment of assessments, etc.   
 
The Member Disciplinary process is coordinated by the Compliance Division.  A complaint may 
be registered by calling the Security Department at 949-580-1400 or the Compliance 
Department at 949-268-CALL or by email at compliance@vmsinc.org.  
  

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 4 of 6



this page intentionally left blank



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
August 21, 2018 
Page 5 
 
 

Attachment 2: Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
 

THIRD MUTUAL  

DISCIPLINARY VIOLATIONS MATRIX 

Allegation 
Schedule 
Hearing 

Immediately 

Follow 
Normal 
Hearing 
Process

Issue 
Courtesy 
Notice 
First 

Notes 

Abandoned Vehicle  X 

Alterations ‐ General Requirements 

   Construction Hours  X 

   Debris  X 

   Expired Permit  X 

Pay after first 
notice in force 

now 

   Non‐Compliance to Variance Request  X 

   Use of Community Trash Bins  X 

Alterations – Failure to Maintain  X  1 time only 

Animal Control 

   Breeding animals for sale or commercial gain  X 

   Dog Barking  X  1 time only 

   Injury to person/Damage to property  X 

   Not picking up and di8sposing of feces  X 

   Not under control (off leash/longer than 6ft)  X 

Caregiver Policy  X 

Clutter 

   Balcony  X  1 time only 

   Breezeway  X  1 time only 

   Carport  X  1 time only 

   Common Area  X  1 time only 

   Interior  X  1 time only 

   Patio  X  1 time only 

   Vehicle  X  1 time only 

Illegal Business  X 

Landscape 

   Saucers/Casters not present  X 

   Too Many Plants (refer to Landscape Manual)  X 

   Vegetable Plants  X 

   Vines Attached to #Walls  X 

   Wind Chimes  X 

Manor Maintenance/Repair 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 5 of 6



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
August 21, 2018 
Page 6 
 
 

   Major (Fire, Safety, Health Hazard)  X 

   Minor (Broken Blinds, etc.)  x 

   Non‐Payment of Assessments  X 

   Non‐Payment of Chargeable Services  X 

Nuisance ‐ Behavior/Disturbance 

   Assault, Theft  X 

   Trespassing  X 

   Yelling  X 

Nuisance ‐ Noise 

   Hard surface Flooring  X 

A form is filled 
out first, then a 

Meet and 
Confer. 

   Loud TV, Radio, Conversation  X 

Nuisance ‐ Odors  X 

Nuisance ‐ Other  X  X 
Depending on 

type 

Non‐Smoking Policy  X 

Temporary Container Policy  X 

Traffic Rules (Commercial, Excessive Vehicles)  X 

Unauthorized Occupancy 

   Advertisement  X 

   Lease Policy  X 

   No Authorization  X 

   Qualifying Resident Not In Unit  X 

   Room Rentals  X 

   Short‐Term Rentals  X 

Vehicle Oil  X  1 time only 

NOTES: 
1.  Our legal counsel has advised us to add a disclaimer that this list does not identify/list all infractions nor 
constitute the handling of the same. 

2.  We need to spell out the normal Hearing Process for illegal occupancy. 
3.  The subject of storage containers came up.  Kurt needs to provide the breakdown of types and damage 
caused by them.  

Also, we have Resolutions pertaining to these as well. 

 
 

Agenda Item # 13e 
Page 6 of 6



INCOME STATEMENT 

Financial Report 
As of June 30, 2018 

ACTUAL 
(in Thousands) 

TOTAL REVENUE $16,925 

TOTAL EXPENSE 14,520 

Revenue over Expense $2,405 

Slide 1 
Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 1 of 7



INCOME STATEMENT - OPERATING 

Financial Report 
As of June 30, 2018 

ACTUAL 
(in Thousands) 

Assessment Revenue $9,439 

Non-assessment Revenue $686 

Total Revenue $10,125 

Total Expense $9,842 

Net Revenue/(Expense) $283 

w/o Depreciation $356 

Slide 2 
Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 2 of 7



INCOME STATEMENT – NON OPERATING 

Financial Report 
As of June 30, 2018 

ACTUAL 
(in Thousands) 

Assessment Revenue $6,577 

Non-assessment Revenue $223 

Total Revenue $6,800 

Total Expense 4,678 

Net Revenue/(Expense) $2,122 

Slide 3 
Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 3 of 7



Financial Report 
As of June 30, 2018 

Through June, Third was better than budget by  
$2,070K primarily in outside services: 

 
• Building Structures; staff presented consultant report 

 in July; instructed to begin bid process.   
• Disaster Fund; contingency funds for emergency 

 expenditures not covered by insurance.   
• Exterior Lighting; for acquisition of street lights from 

 Edison, which was approved by the CPUC.  
• Paving; Concrete work completed in June and asphalt 

 work is scheduled for August.  

 

 

 
 

Slide 4 
Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 4 of 7



Financial Report 
As of June 30, 2018 

Total Operating Expenses $9,842,156 

Slide 5 

49% Employee Compensation & Related

27% Utilities and Telephones

6% Insurance

5% Net Allocation to Mutuals

4% Outside Services

4% Material and Supplies

3% Other Operating Expense

2% Repairs and Maintenance

Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 5 of 7



Financial Report 
As of June 30, 2018 

ACTUAL 
(in Thousands) 

Beginning Balances: 1/1/18 $28,094 

Contributions & Interest 6,800 

Expenditures (4,678) 

Current Balances: 6/30/18 $30,216 

NON OPERATING FUND BALANCES 

Slide 6 
Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 6 of 7



 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Report for August 21, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
SLIDE 1 – Total revenue for Third through June 30, 2018 was $16,925K compared to 
expenses of $14,520K, resulting in more revenue than expense by $2,405K. 
 

SLIDE 2 – Now we look at those same results with a distinction between operating and 
reserve funds.  This chart shows how much of our revenue went into operations, with $9,439K 
coming in from assessments and $686K coming from non-assessment revenue.  This is 
compared to operating expenditures of $9,842K.  After backing out depreciation, which is not 
funded through operations, we can see a bottom line operating surplus of $356K as of the 
reporting period.   
 

SLIDE 3 – This chart shows how much of our revenue went into reserve funds and the amount 
expended to date. 
 

SLIDE 4 – Through June, Third was better than budget by $2,070K primarily due to outside 
service work on reserve programs: 
 

- Building Structures, timing.  Staff received a detailed report from a consultant 
determining which buildings need work.  Staff presented the report in July; work will 
commence after the bid process and Board approval of the contractor selection.   

- Disaster Fund, less use of contingency. The disaster fund includes funding for 
emergency expenditures not covered by insurance, including insurance policy 
deductibles.  If damage restoration expense exceeds the deductible amount, 
insurance payouts are coded to this fund.  Further, an insurance reimbursement 
of $181,870 for reimbursement of a fire was booked in February.   

- Exterior Lighting, timing.  This program is for the acquisition of street lights from 
Edison which was approved by the California Public Utility Commission (CPUC). 

- Paving, timing. Concrete work completed in June and asphalt work is scheduled 
for August. 

SLIDE 5 – On this pie chart, we see the Operating expenses to date of $9.8 Million by 
category, showing that our largest categories of expense are for compensation and utilities.   
 

SLIDE 6 – The reserve balances on June 30, 2018 were just over $30 Million.  To date, 
contributions to reserves including assessments and interest earnings totaled over $6.8 Million 
and expenditures to date totaled just under $4.7 Million.   
 
 

[No slide] – In closed session, we reviewed delinquencies for unpaid assessments totaling 
$227K, which represents less than 1% of the annual assessment budget.  We are able to 
maintain such a relatively low level of delinquencies by following prescribed collection policies 
to pursue payment on these accounts, either through the non-judicial foreclosure process or by 
obtaining personal judgments in small claims court.  The Board has been working closely with 
our collection firm and legal counsel to pursue further collection activity for unpaid accounts. 
We also reviewed delinquencies for fines, fees and chargeable services totaling $200K. The 
Board is pursuing further collection activity such as cable TV disconnection and small claims. 

 Agenda Item # 14a 
Treasurer's Report 

Page 7 of 7



this page intentionally left blank



 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE  

THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, August 7, 2018 – 1:30 p.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room, 24351 El Toro Road 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Parsons – Chair, Rosemarie diLorenzo, Bunny Carpenter, Bill 

Walsh, James Tung, Burt Baum, Roy Bruninghaus, Jules Zalon, 
Cush Bhada, John Frankel 
Advisors: Wei-Ming Tao, John Hess, Michael Cunningham 

  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Jack Connelly 
  
STAFF PRESENT: Betty Parker, Steve Hormuth, Francis Rangel, Christopher Swanson 
  
 
Call to Order 
Director Parsons, Treasurer, chaired the meeting and called it to order at 1:37 p.m. 
 
Acknowledgment of Media 
None. 
 
Approve Meeting Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda with the following changes: 
 

- Remove Chargeable Services for Replacement of Fire Alarm Batteries from Agenda 
- Discuss Disciplinary Violations Matrix after Department Head Update 

 
Approval of Meeting Report for July 3, 2018 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the Committee report as presented. 
 
Chair Remarks 
None.    
 
Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
None.  
 
Department Head Update 
Betty Parker, Financial Services Director, commented on the televised 2019 Business Planning 
meeting scheduled for Friday, August 10 at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room.   
 
Disciplinary Violations Matrix 
Francis Rangel, Operations Manager, presented the Disciplinary Violations Matrix and 
discussed proposed processes. The Committee requested Ms. Rangel make revisions for Board 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Finance Committee 

Page 1 of 2



Report of Third Finance Committee Open Meeting 
August 7, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 
review on August 21, to use title to “Alterations - Failure to Maintain” for clarification and to 
include the disciplinary process document with the matrix.  Ms. Rangel left the meeting at 1:51 
p.m.  
 
Preliminary Financial Statements Dated June 30, 2018 
The Committee reviewed and commented on the financial statements dated June 30, 2018 and 
requested the following items:  
 
 Detailed Report of Legal Fees vs. Credits 
 Written Laundry Coin Collection Audit Policy 
 Year End Projections for Utility Accounts 
 Review Department of Landscape Staffing Levels  

 
Delegation of Responsibilities Matrix  
Director Carpenter commented on procurement process changes implemented since the 
transition to Village Management Services at the end of the 2015 and noted that she is 
preparing a procurement informational meeting for Board members.  
 
Owner Notification of Lessee/Occupant Delinquencies  
Steve Hormuth, Controller, presented a sample Courtesy Letter for Lessee Delinquencies that 
will be sent to the owner of a property to advise them early in the collection process when an 
occupant or lessee has an unpaid balance. The Committee requested a wording clarification for 
“Chargeable Service” and asked Staff  to follow up with more information regarding the 
collection process for traffic violations.    
 
Solar Energy Update  
A handout was provided by Director Walsh which reflected the projected payback period of the 
solar systems based on recorded generation of electricity through the Solar Inverter.  
 
Future Agenda Items 
Audit of SCE Billing for Solar 
Discussion of Accruals 
Coin Collection Process  
Year End Projections 
 
Committee Member Comments 
None.   
 
Date of Next Meeting 
Tuesday, September 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room. 
 
Recess to Closed Session 
The meeting recessed to closed session at 3:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Steve Parsons, Chair 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Finance Committee 

Page 2 of 2

swansoc
Draft



7648 $23,481,992 $308,974$308,782January $14,821,540

6350 $18,400,200 $292,067$373,203February $18,660,142

8082 $24,765,800 $309,573$359,818March $28,065,799

8877 $29,024,579 $329,825$364,398April $27,694,226

10569 $34,046,751 $327,373$350,551May $24,187,990

9076 $31,945,600 $354,951$378,413June $28,002,538

6859 $21,413,120 $314,899$329,392July $19,434,100

**90 $29,277,556 $325,306August *

**83 $25,481,938 $310,755September *

**75 $26,703,200 $356,043October *

**86 $29,641,100 $344,664November *

**88 $31,413,715 $356,974December *

TOTAL 570.00 $183,078,042

MON AVG 81.00 $26,154,006 $319,666

461.00

65.00 $22,980,905

$160,866,335

$352,079

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

July, 2018All MutualsCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 108/01/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 1 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

12

24

36

48

60

72

84

96

108

120

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - All Mutuals Page 1 08/01/2018 09:40

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 2 of 8



3825 $14,513,062 $381,923$352,286January $8,807,150

2829 $9,887,500 $353,125$434,514February $12,600,892

4238 $15,185,800 $361,567$444,979March $16,909,199

4546 $18,847,150 $418,826$410,209April $18,869,626

4438 $18,157,951 $412,681$406,658May $15,452,990

4937 $21,011,450 $428,805$458,950June $16,981,138

3624 $13,526,020 $375,723$412,200July $9,892,800

**47 $17,967,189 $382,281August *

**46 $16,020,038 $356,001September *

**46 $18,804,700 $408,798October *

**49 $19,847,200 $405,045November *

**39 $18,834,275 $482,930December *

TOTAL 282.00 $111,128,933

MON AVG 40.00 $15,875,562 $390,378

237.00

33.00 $14,216,256

$99,513,795

$417,114

% CHANGE -
YTD

-16.0% -10.5% 6.8%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

July, 2018ThirdCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 108/01/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 3 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

7

14

21

28

35

42

49

56

63

70

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - Third Laguna Hills Mutual Page 1 08/01/2018 09:35

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 4 of 8



07/25/2018 Century 21 RSM Escrow Network Group, Inc2173-P 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCoronado$200,000

07/11/2018 Century 21 Award Escrow Network Group, Inc2208-N 3 ZUTILA REAL ESTATECasa 
Contenta

$205,000

07/24/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services2244-C 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCasa 
Contenta

$225,000

07/10/2018 New Star Homestead Escrow2287-N 3 Century 21 AwardCastilla$300,800

07/13/2018 FSBO Granite Escrow2319-Q 3 FSBOCasa Linda$202,000

07/23/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group2352-B 3 HomeSmart EvergreenCordoba$350,000

07/03/2018 Re/Max Associated Realtors Integra Escrow2388-3H 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncGarden Villa$585,000

07/24/2018 No Broker Coast Cities Escrow2405-3H 3 COMPASS REAL ESTATEVilla Capri$519,500

07/27/2018 Regency Real Estate Homestead Escrow3048-Q 3 Regency Real EstateCasa Del Mar$324,500

07/17/2018 Laguna Woods Properties Homestead Escrow3070-B 3 Realty One GroupVilla Nova$450,000

07/16/2018 Century 21 Rainbow Realty Granite Escrow3234-B 3 HomeSmart EvergreenLas Flores$496,000

07/17/2018 Keller Williams Real Estate Granite Escrow3260-B 3 First Team Real EstateCasa Arriba$630,000

07/09/2018 THE L3 REAL ESTATE Homestead Escrow3275-P 3 Century 21 RainbowCasa Vista$292,000

07/09/2018 California Freedom Homestead Escrow3306-P 3 Prea RealtyCasa Vista$310,000

07/25/2018 Wave Crest Financial Homestead Escrow3312-C 3 Purplebricks Realty, Inc.La Reina$759,000

07/20/2018 MB REALTY AND MANAGEMENT Homestead Escrow3366-1A 3 Keller Williams Real EstateAragon$217,000

07/09/2018 Berkshire Hathaway Homestead Escrow3405-B 3 Presidential Real EstateNavarro$690,000

07/09/2018 Century 21 Rainbow Realty Homestead Escrow4005-1D 3 Village Real EstateVilla Nueva$325,000

07/26/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Granite Escrow4006-3C 3 Coldwell BankerEl Mirador$500,000

07/18/2018 Realty Benefit Granite Escrow4012-3G 3 William Shore, BrokerVilla Nueva$450,000

07/10/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow5494-A 3 Home Smart EvergreenCasa Rosa$625,000

07/12/2018 First Team Real Estate Granite Escrow5500-1G 3 No BrokerEl Mirador$469,000

07/10/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services5517-1C 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncEl Mirador$320,000

Third Laguna Hills Mutual

Resales Report

July, 2018

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 1Page 2of08/01/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 5 of 8



07/23/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services5518-2A 3 Presidential Real EstateEl Mirador$448,000

Total Resale Price:

Number of Resales:

Average Resale Price: $412,200

24

$9,892,800

Median Resale Price: $399,000

Third Laguna Hills Mutual

Resales Report

July, 2018

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 2Page 2of08/01/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 6 of 8



Revised

PREPARED BY MUTUAL

Community Services Department Third July 2018

NO. OF RESALES AVG RESALE PRICE 

Period Month 2018 2017 2016 2015 2018 2017 2016 2015 2018 2017 2016 2015

1 January 25 38 30 39 $8,807,150 $14,513,062 $10,663,350 $11,735,750 $352,286 $381,923 $355,445 $300,917

2 February 29 28 31 27 $12,600,892 $9,887,500 $11,354,000 $7,690,000 $434,514 $353,125 $366,258 $284,815

3 March 38 42 44 41 $16,909,199 $15,185,800 $14,408,861 $16,302,100 $444,979 $361,567 $327,474 $397,612

4 April 46 45 49 51 $18,869,626 $18,847,150 $18,170,528 $14,509,805 $410,209 $418,826 $370,827 $284,506

5 May 38 44 44 43 $15,452,990 $18,157,951 $13,703,900 $12,983,750 $406,658 $412,681 $311,452 $301,948

6 June 37 49 42 45 $16,981,138 $21,011,450 $12,838,300 $15,321,388 $458,950 $428,805 $305,674 $340,475

7 July 24 36 46 50 $9,892,800 $13,526,020 $16,112,500 $16,392,300 $412,200 $375,723 $350,272 $327,846
8 August 47 56 41 $17,967,189 $21,085,200 $12,231,250 $382,281 $376,521 $298,323
9 September 46 41 43 $16,020,038 $12,651,500 $15,332,500 $356,001 $308,573 $356,570

10 October 46 40 44 $18,804,700 $13,386,500 $12,924,787 $408,798 $334,663 $293,745
11 November 49 43 38 $19,847,200 $16,453,200 $12,332,000 $405,045 $382,633 $324,526
12 December 38 36 33 $18,509,275 $12,528,800 $11,532,800 $487,086 $348,022 $349,479

TOTAL 237 282 286 296 $99,513,795 $111,128,933 $97,251,439 $94,935,093

MON AVG 33.9 40.3 40.9 42.3 $14,216,256 $15,875,562 $13,893,063 $13,562,156 $417,114 $390,379 $341,057 $319,731

% CHANGE‐YTD ‐16.0% ‐1.4% ‐3.4% 26.5% ‐10.5% 14.3% 2.4% 23.0% 6.8% 14.5% 6.7% ‐0.5%

% Change calculated (This Year ‐ Last Year)/Last Year

Percent calculation only includes YTD figures in black. 

Monthly Resale Report

TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 7 of 8



New Monthly Transactions

MONTH 3 Months 6 Months 12 Months 12+Months Leases Renewals Extensions

January 21 22 378 1192 1613 75 31 95 0
February 21 24 386 1220 1651 38 50 138 1
March 14 22 375 1233 1644 52 45 124 0
April 9 22 385 1240 1656 50 46 93 0
May 15 20 381 1209 1625 66 54 110 0
June 29 25 379 1229 1662 53 78 151 2
July 30 26 390 1227 1673 40 72 146 1
August 0
September 0
October 0
November 0
December 0

Monthly 
Average 19.9 23.0 382.0 1221.4 1646.3 Jan‐Jul 1657.6 53.4 53.7 122.4 0.6

Percentage 
Leased 1673 / 6102 = 27%

Total 
Expirations

MONTHLY LEASING REPORT
Report Period: 
July-2018

LEASES IN EFFECT Total this 
year

Total last 
year

1669

1664
1667
1630
1653
1652
1659
1667
1648
1646
1656

1678

Agenda Item # 14a 
Resale-Lease Reports 

Page 8 of 8



 
 OPEN MEETING 

 
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 
MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, August 6, 2018 – 1:00 PM  

 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room   

24351 El Toro Road 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Bill Walsh – Chair, Bunny Carpenter, John Frankel, 

Rosemarie di Lorenzo, Roy Bruninghaus, Steve 
Parsons, Jack Connelly, Cush Bhada, Jules Zalon, 
James Tung, Advisors: None 

  
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Burt Baum, Advisor Steve Leonard  
 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Brad Hudson, Laurie 

Chavarria  
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Chair Walsh called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM and stated that the meeting is being 
held pursuant to notice duly given and established that a quorum of the Committee was 
present.   
 

2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 
The media was not present. 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
Director Frankel added Smoke Detectors to the agenda, as item 14. Director Carpenter 
added Water Heater Replacements to the agenda as item 15.  
 
By consensus, all items on the consent calendar were pulled for discussion. 
 
The agenda was approved as amended. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 1 of 5



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
August 6, 2018 
Page 2 of 5 
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for July 2, 2018 
 
Director Bhada requested that a sentence structure be corrected on page two of the 
meeting report. The meeting report from July 2, 2018 was approved as amended by a 
vote of 9/0/1 (Director Connelly abstained). 
 
5. Chair's Remarks 
 
Chair Walsh had no remarks. 
 
6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 

 Lynn Jarrett (4010-1C) commented on the laundry room vinyl floor replacements, 
mailroom floor replacements and the storage closet policy for LH-21 buildings.   

 Kim Shirley (2395-1B) commented on GV Breezeway Recessed area pilot 
project. 

 Bert Moldow (3503-A) commented on the GV Breezeway Recessed area pilot 
project. 
 

Ernesto Munoz, Chair Walsh and Director di Lorenzo briefly responded to the 
comments.   
 
Staff was directed to provide the LH-21 storage closet policy and resolution to GVA 
President Lynn Jarrett and Directors di Lorenzo and Carpenter for review. 
 
7. Department Head Update 
 
Staff Officer, Ernesto Munoz provided an update on the following projects and programs: 
 

 Solar Panel Cleaning  
 Dryer Replacement Project  
 Trash Chute Repairs  
 Asphalt Paving Program 
 ETWD Recycled Water Expansion Project 
 Parkway Concrete repairs  
 Foundations Program 
 Building Address Signs 
 Building Structure repairs 
 Street Light Acquisition  
 LED Fixture Pilot Project  
 Shepherd’s Crook  
 Garden Villa Breezeway Recessed Area Pilot Project 

 
Chair Walsh, Directors Bhada, Frankel, Bruninghaus, Carpenter, and Moldow commented 
on the various updates. 
 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 2 of 5



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
August 6, 2018 
Page 3 of 5 
 
Staff was directed to contact the Mutual’s solar contractor and ask their opinion on the 
amount of cleanings needed per year, before any additional solar panel cleanings are 
scheduled.   
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted
by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed from the Consent 
Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be the subject of further 
discussion and action by the Committee. 
 
8. Programs Report  
 
Director Parsons commented on the funding for the PTP program. 
 
9. Maintenance Expenditures and Variance Explanations 
 
Director di Lorenzo commented on Lobby Renovations, Mailroom Renovations and 
Supplemental Appropriations. 
 
10. Project Log 
 
Questions on the Project Log were discussed under the Department Head Update. 
 
Reports: 
 
 

11. Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services 
 
Directors Bruninghaus and di Lorenzo commented on the items added to the Non-
Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services list. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the need to focus on customer service, additional staffing 
requirements, training of the resident service representatives, and the possibility of 
additional work needed such as patching holes and painting, that would also be 
chargeable to the member, after certain maintenance services were performed.  
 
Staff was directed to remove the estimated time frame, remove the trade billing rate, add 
the approval date to the list, add the wording “prices subject to change,” remove the 
service of replacing light ballasts and add replacement of existing fixtures to the list.   
 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to recommend the Board approve the 
revised Non-Emergency Chargeable Maintenance Services as well as amend the current 
resolution. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 3 of 5



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
August 6, 2018 
Page 4 of 5 
 
12. Fumigation Program Notifications 
 
Staff Officer, Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the termite fumigation process, revisions to the fumigation 
notice and the plant removal process performed by the Landscape Division. 
 
Staff was informed that Director di Lorenzo will work with Marketing Director Eileen Paulin, 
and Newport Exterminating to revise the Fumigation Program notification letter. 
 
13. Address & Cul-de-Sac Signage Pilot Programs (oral discussion - Director 

Bruninghaus) 
 
Staff Officer, Ernesto Munoz displayed the new building address and cul-de-sac signs for 
the Committee and asked for direction relative to the cul-de-sac sign color and location for 
the pilot project. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding traffic grade metal poles, where to place the poles, design 
ideas for the pilot sign and the location of the pilot project.  
 
By consensus, staff was directed to fabricate cul-de-sac signs in an oval shape using 
green background with white lettering for address numbers and yellow lettering for cul-de-
sac numbers.  The location for the pilot project will be at cul-de-sac 212. 
 
14. Smoke Detectors (oral discussion) 
 
Director Frankel asked if Third Mutual should get into the Smoke Detector business by 
requiring and providing smoke detectors for each manor. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding a marketing effort to remind residents to check their smoke 
detectors and change batteries as needed, asking staff to change batteries or smoke 
detectors as a chargeable service, statistics about kitchen fires, and carbon monoxide 
detectors.  
 
By consensus, staff was directed to add a non-emergency maintenance chargeable
service to replace an existing smoke detector and to change smoke detector batteries. 
 
15. Water Heater Replacements (oral discussion) 
 
Staff was directed to only install water heaters with a 10-year manufacturer warranty. 
 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 
 Contract Award for Dry Rot Repairs (Closed Session) 
 Contract Award for Commercial Dryer Replacement (Closed Session, September) 
 GV Mailroom Tile Floor Replacement 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 4 of 5



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
August 6, 2018 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 GV Breezeway Recessed Area Project (January 2019) 
 Vehicle Decal Policy Revisions 
 Alteration Flooring Replacement Disbursement (due to moisture intrusion) 
 GV Inspection and Replacement of Receptacles in Garages 
 GV Garage Cabinet Costs per Building  

 
Concluding Business:               
 
Committee Member Comments 
 
There were no member comments. 
 

 Director di Lorenzo asked that the GV Garage Cabinet Costs, GV Inspection and 
Replacement of Receptacles in Garages and Vehicle Decal Policy Revisions be 
removed from the Items for Future Agendas. 

 
Date of Next Meeting – October 1, 2018 
 
Adjournment                  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:41 PM.  
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Bill Walsh, Chair  

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Bunny Carpenter 

 

DRAFT 

DRAFT 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 5 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 4 of 4



 
OPEN MEETING 

  
REPORT FOR REGULAR MEETING OF THE VILLAGE ENERGY TASK FORCE  

 
Wednesday, August 1, 2018 - 9:30 A.M. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Cypress Room 
24351 El Toro Road 

  
MEMBERS PRESENT: Bill Walsh – Chair, John Frankel, Carl Randazzo, 

Juanita Skillman, Bert Moldow, Jim Juhan 
 
Advisor: Steve Leonard 

 
MEMBER ABSENT: None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Jim Matson, Dick Palmer, Councilmember Shari 

Horne 
   
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz - Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Chair Walsh called the meeting to order at 9:30 A.M. 
 
2. Acknowledgment of Media 

 
Chair Walsh noted no members of the media were present. 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
Chair Walsh added Councilmember Shari Horne as a speaker under item 6a and 
added Task Force Charter Revisions as item 14.  The agenda was approved as 
amended.  
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for June 6, 2018 

 
The Meeting Report of June 6, 2018, was approved as written. Chair Walsh asked 
that a signature line for the vice chair be added to future meeting reports. 
 
5. Chairman’s Remarks 

 
Chair Walsh remarked that Mutual 50, The Towers, was invited to participate in the 
Village Energy Task Force meetings but a representative was not in attendance at 
today’s meeting.   Chair Walsh shared that COO, Siobhan Foster is working with 
SCE on their electric vehicle fleet incentive program.  He would like to see an SCE 
representative at a future meeting to speak about this program. Mr. Munoz 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 1 of 5



  OPEN MEETING  
 
Village Energy Task Force                  
August 1, 2018 
Page 2 of 5 
 
indicated that the CEO’s Office is in the process of arranging a visit from the SCE 
representative.  
 
6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
 Nadine & Alfred Meissner (3071-B) – commented on EV charging issues in 

their carport. 
 
Advisor Leonard, Chair Walsh and Director Skillman briefly responded to the 
members comments. 
 
6a.  Councilmember Shari Horne – CCA/CCE  
 
Councilmember Shari Horne spoke about what she learned when she attended a 
UCI lecture regarding Community Choice Aggregation.  This program is not about 
saving money, it is about using a clean energy source and is available to 
municipalities only.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding generation/distribution costs from SCE, time-of-use 
charges, and informing the Community about other sources of clean energy. 
 
7. Department Head Update 

 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz provided updates on the Street Light LED conversion 
pilot program, the SCE cable upgrade project in United Mutual, the walkway lighting 
upgrades in Gates 5, 6, 7 & 8 in Third, and also provided an update on the audit of 
United’s walkway lighting in Gates 5 & 6. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the solar audit report expected from JCI, the cost of 
their management fee and their legal obligations to provide required solar 
documents.  
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by the Task Force by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed 
from the Consent Calendar by members of the Task Force, such item(s) shall be 
the subject of further discussion and action by the Task Force. 
 
A motion was approved and unanimously carried to approve all items under the 
consent calendar. Staff was directed to move items 10 and 11 to Items for Future 
Agendas. 
 
8. Project Log  
9. SCE Street Light Outage Report  
10. Officer Selections for Energy Task Force 
11. Electric Vehicle History Report  

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 2 of 5



  OPEN MEETING  
 
Village Energy Task Force                  
August 1, 2018 
Page 3 of 5 
 
Reports: 
 
12. Prioritized Work Items from Each Corporation for the Energy Consultant  
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report of prioritized work items for the 
energy consultant and answered questions from the Task Force. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding an overall EV charging strategy, conservation 
opportunities (window tinting, LED lighting), load studies, back-up generators using 
alternative energy, and the components of a Microgrid. 
 
A motion was made and unanimously approved to direct staff to develop a scope of 
work for the energy priorities chosen by each Corporation as listed below, in order 
to solicit a proposal from the energy consultant to develop and execute said 
priorities. 
 
United: 
 

1. Review the current United Mutual electric infrastructure with an eye toward 
the current, 5 and 10 year load capacity needs for electric panels, 
transformers etc. 
 

2. Perform an analysis and report on the findings of the electric infrastructure 
review.  
 

3. Prepare a strategic action plan for recommended electric infrastructure 
upgrades, as well as EV charging, solar and any other recommended 
upgrades that will make our systems more efficient and thus reduce our 
operating costs. 

Third: 
 

1.  Review the current Third Mutual electric infrastructure with an eye toward the 
current, 5 and 10 year load capacity needs for electric panels, transformers 
etc. 

 
2.  Perform an analysis and report on the findings of the electric infrastructure 

review. 
 
3. Prepare a strategic action plan for electric infrastructure upgrades, 

particularly in the multi-story building garages and carports, as well EV 
charging, solar and other efficiencies. 

 
GRF: 

 
1. Research the feasibility for alternative energy & microgrids for electrical 

energy generation. 
 
2. Develop a Community Strategy for EV Charging Stations. 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 3 of 5



  OPEN MEETING  
 
Village Energy Task Force                  
August 1, 2018 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
13. Third Mutual Solar Photovoltaic System Update 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report for the Third Mutual solar 
photovoltaic system and answered questions from the Task Force. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the monitoring company, panel cleanings, and the rise 
in meter fees from SCE. 
 
14. Charter Revisions 
 
Chair Walsh discussed the changes that the United Mutual attorney suggested for 
the language of the Village Energy Task Force Charter. 
 
Changes suggested were to remove the word “safety” from the third paragraph, and 
also to change Laguna Woods Village to “their respective residents” in the same 
paragraph.   
 
A motion was made to accept the suggested changes and send the revised Charter 
directly to the United, Third and GRF Board meetings for review and approval. 
 
By a vote of 6/1/0 (Director Moldow opposed), the motion carried. 
 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 
 Officer Selections for Energy Task Force 
 Electric Vehicle History Report  
 Golf Cart Report  
 EV Charging Stations at Stand Alone Laundry Rooms 
 LED Solar Street Lights (low priority) 
 2-story Buildings LED Lighting Pilot Program (low priority) 
 Costs for Level 2 Charging Stations at Stand-alone Laundry Rooms (low priority) 
 Investigate the installation of conduit from the electric panels in GV to service 

the carports  
 Install Level II EV Bollard Chargers (on the streets) 
 2-3 Year Energy Plan:  (Verbal Discussion) 

a) Distributed Energy Resources Contract 
b) Microgrid Investigation 
c) Street Light LED Replacement Program 
d) Street Light Maintenance Contract 

 
Member Comments: 
 
 Advisor Leonard spoke about the Solar International Convention coming up in 

September.  He suggested that a representative from each Corporation attend 
the convention. 

 
Agenda Item # 14g 

Page 4 of 5



Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 5 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 14h 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14h 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14h 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14h 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14i 
Page 1 of 3



Agenda Item # 14i 
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item # 14i 
Page 3 of 3


	13c MC Staff Report - Non Emergency Chargeable Services (for Board).pdf
	Blank Page

	14a1 Third Treasurer's Report 2018_06.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



